CONVERGYS CORP Form 10-Q November 04, 2015

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-O

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2015 OR

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to Commission File Number 1-14379

CONVERGYS CORPORATION

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Incorporated under the laws of the State of Ohio 201 East Fourth Street, Cincinnati, Ohio 45202 I.R.S. Employer Identification Number 31-1598292 Telephone - Area Code (513) 723-7000

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes \circ No "Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate website, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes \circ No "

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer
Accelerated filer

Non-accelerated filer "

Smaller reporting company"

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes "No \circ

At September 30, 2015, there were 97,532,765 common shares, without par value, outstanding, excluding amounts held in Treasury of 92,766,273.

Table of Contents

CONVERGYS	CORPOR	ATION

Form 10-Q For the Period Ended September 30, 2015 INDEX

PART I. FII	NANCIAL INFORMATION	Page
ITEM 1.	Financial Statements:	
TILIVI I.	Consolidated Statements of Income - Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2015 and 2014 (Unaudited)	<u>3</u>
	Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income - Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2015 and 2014 (Unaudited)	<u>4</u>
	Consolidated Balance Sheets - September 30, 2015 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2014	<u>5</u>
	Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow - Nine Months Ended September 30, 2015 and 2014 (Unaudited)	<u>6</u>
ITEM 0	Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)	7
ITEM 2. ITEM 3.	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk	24 35
ITEM 4.	Controls and Procedures	<u>36</u>
PART II. O	THER INFORMATION	
ITEM 1 ITEM 1A.	<u>Legal Proceedings</u> Risk Factors	<u>37</u>
ITEM 1A. ITEM 2.	Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	37 37
ITEM 6.	Exhibits	<u>37</u>
SIGNATUE	<u>RE</u>	<u>39</u>
2		

Table of Contents

PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (Unaudited)

(Chaudica)					
	Three Mon September		Nine Months Ended September 30,		
(In millions, except per share amounts)	2015	2014	2015	2014	
Revenues	\$741.6	\$749.5	\$2,198.8	\$2,091.6	
Costs and Expenses:					
Cost of providing services and products sold	471.1	476.1	1,406.6	1,327.4	
Selling, general and administrative	175.9	177.5	513.5	499.1	
Research and development costs	1.8	1.9	5.4	5.7	
Depreciation	35.2	38.8	108.1	104.8	
Amortization	6.6	7.3	20.6	17.6	
Restructuring charges	0.1	0.5	3.5	2.2	
Gain on sale of real estate				(1.6)
Transaction and integration costs	3.1	5.4	7.8	35.5	
Total Costs and Expenses	693.8	707.5	2,065.5	1,990.7	
Operating Income	47.8	42.0	133.3	100.9	
Other (expense) income, net	(2.6) 0.3	0.3	(1.6)
Interest expense	(4.6) (5.9) (13.9)
Income before Income Taxes	40.6	36.4	119.7	83.7	
Income tax (benefit) expense	(17.0) 6.4	(6.1) 15.2	
Income from Continuing Operations, net of tax	57.6	30.0	125.8	68.5	
Income from Discontinued Operations, net of tax	0.5	2.8	0.6	3.2	
Net Income	\$58.1	\$32.8	\$126.4	\$71.7	
Basic Earnings Per Common Share:					
Continuing operations	\$0.59	\$0.30	\$1.28	\$0.68	
Discontinued operations	_	0.03	_	0.03	
Basic Earnings per Common Share	\$0.59	\$0.33	\$1.28	\$0.71	
Diluted Earnings Per Common Share:					
Continuing operations	\$0.55	\$0.28	\$1.20	\$0.65	
Discontinued operations	0.01	0.03	0.01	0.03	
Diluted Earnings per Common Share	\$0.56	\$0.31	\$1.21	\$0.68	
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding:					
Basic	97.9	100.7	98.4	101.0	
Diluted	104.1	105.2	104.6	105.7	
Cash Dividends Declared per Share	\$0.08	\$0.07	\$0.23	\$0.20	

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Table of Contents

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Unaudited)

	Three Mo	nths Ended	Nine Mon	ths Ended	
	September	r 30,	Septembe	r 30,	
(In millions)	2015	2014	2015	2014	
Net Income	\$58.1	\$32.8	\$126.4	\$71.7	
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), net of tax:					
Foreign currency translation adjustments	(8.9) (28.0) (27.7) (21.6)
Change related to minimum pension liability	1.6	(6.1) 4.8	(3.7)
Unrealized holding loss on hedging activities	(17.5) (21.3) (14.6) (1.3)
Total other comprehensive loss	(24.8) (55.4) (37.5) (26.6)
Total Comprehensive Income (Loss)	\$33.3	\$(22.6) \$88.9	\$45.1	

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Table of Contents

5

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In millions)	September 30, 2015 (Unaudited)	December 31, 2014
ASSETS		
Current Assets:	¢175 0	¢ 100 0
Cash and cash equivalents Short-term investments	\$175.8 11.7	\$198.9 13.0
Receivables, net of allowances of \$5.6 and \$8.1	556.4	511.1
Deferred income tax assets	107.3	107.2
	50.5	28.9
Prepaid expenses Other gurrent assets	36.2	31.8
Other current assets		
Total Current Assets	937.9	890.9
Property and equipment, net	349.2	367.8
Goodwill	834.8	850.7
Other intangibles, net	327.1	355.2
Deferred income tax assets	11.3	8.2
Other assets	42.5	43.7
Total Assets	\$2,502.8	\$2,516.5
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY		
Current Liabilities:	# 4.0	Φ 7. 5
Debt and capital lease obligations maturing within one year	\$4.0	\$7.5
Payables and other current liabilities	407.2	361.0
Total Current Liabilities	411.2	368.5
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations	327.7	368.4
Deferred income tax liabilities	268.4	275.6
Accrued pension liabilities	94.8	116.9
Other long-term liabilities	84.5	95.6
Total Liabilities	1,186.6	1,225.0
Convertible debentures conversion feature	63.3	64.3
Shareholders' Equity:		
Preferred shares – without par value, 5.0 authorized; none issued or outstanding	_	-
Common shares – without par value, 500.0 authorized; 190.3 and 189.8 issued, 97		
and 99.4 outstanding, as of September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014,	1,089.7	1,077.5
respectively		
Treasury stock – 92.8 and 90.4 as of September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively	(1,544.0	(1,491.2)
Retained earnings	1,811.4	1,707.6
Accumulated other comprehensive loss	(104.2	(66.7)
Total Shareholders' Equity	1,252.9	1,227.2
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity	\$2,502.8	\$2,516.5
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.		

Table of Contents

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)

	Nine Months Er	ided	
	September 30,		
(In millions)	2015	2014	
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES			
Net income	\$126.4	\$71.7	
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax	0.6	3.2	
Income from continuing operations, net of tax	125.8	68.5	
Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing operations, net of tax, to net car	sh		
provided by operating activities of continuing operations:			
Depreciation and amortization	128.7	122.4	
Gain on sale of real estate	_	(1.6)
Deferred income tax expense (benefit)	0.9	(42.2)
Stock compensation expense	11.5	7.6	
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acquisition:			
Change in receivables	(51.4	5.1	
Change in other current assets	(26.3	9.5	
Change in deferred charges, net	1.4	2.1	
Change in other assets and liabilities	(44.9	6.7	
Change in payables and other current liabilities	37.0	29.3	
Net cash provided by operating activities	182.7	207.4	
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES			
Capital expenditures	(88.4	(86.5))
Purchase of short-term investments		(7.2)
Proceeds from maturity of short-term investments		68.7	
Acquisition, net of cash acquired	_	(802.6)
Net cash used in investing activities	(88.4	(827.6)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES			
Proceeds from issuance of other long-term debt	_	344.9	
Repayment of other long-term debt (term loan and capital lease obligations)	(56.0	(104.1)
Proceeds from Asset Securitization Facility	599.0	318.0	
Repayment of Asset Securitization Facility	(589.0	(248.0)
Repurchase of common shares	`	(24.9)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options	2.4	1.4	
Payments of dividends	(21.8	(19.2))
Cash paid for debt issuance costs		(2.0)
Excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangements	0.5	1.9	,
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities	(117.4	268.0	
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents	(23.1	(352.2)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period	198.9	580.8	,
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period	\$175.8	\$228.6	
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.	7 2	÷ == 0.0	

Table of Contents

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Currency Amounts in Millions Except Per Share Amounts) (Unaudited)

(1) BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Convergys Corporation (the Company or Convergys) is a global leader in customer management, focused on bringing value to its clients through every customer interaction. Convergys has approximately 125,000 employees working in more than 150 locations in 31 countries, interacting with our clients' customers in 47 languages.

On March 3, 2014, Convergys completed its acquisition of SGS Holdings, Inc. (Stream), a global customer management leader, providing technical support, customer care and sales for Fortune 1000 companies. This acquisition expanded the Company's geographic footprint and capabilities, adding approximately 40,000 employees in 22 countries. Stream's complementary client portfolio diversified Convergys' client base through the addition of leading technology, communications and other clients. Stream operating results are included in Convergys' Consolidated Statements of Income beginning March 3, 2014.

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (U.S. GAAP) for interim financial reporting and U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations, and, in the opinion of management, include all adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the results of operations, financial position and cash flows for each period shown. All adjustments are of a normal and recurring nature. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in Financial Statements prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP have been condensed or omitted. Interim Consolidated Financial Statements are not necessarily indicative of the financial position or operating results for an entire year. These interim Consolidated Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the audited Financial Statements and the Notes thereto included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014, filed with the SEC on February 18, 2015.

(2) RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In April 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2015-03, "Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs." This ASU requires debt issuance costs to be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying value of the associated debt liability, consistent with the presentation of a debt discount. This update is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2015 and is required to be applied retrospectively. This standard is not expected to have a material effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-12, "Accounting for Share-Based Payments When the Terms of an Award Provide That a Performance Target Could Be Achieved after the Requisite Service Period (Topic 718)." This ASU requires a reporting entity to treat a performance target that affects vesting and that could be achieved after the requisite service period as a performance condition, and apply existing guidance under the Stock Compensation Topic 718 as it relates to awards with performance conditions that affect vesting to account for such awards. This update will be applied prospectively and is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2015. This standard is not expected to have a material effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)." The standard will apply one comprehensive revenue recognition model across all contracts, entities and sectors. The core principal of the new standard is that revenue should be recognized to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Once effective, this ASU will replace most of the existing revenue recognition requirements in U.S.

GAAP. This update is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within that reporting period. The Company is currently assessing the effect that adoption of the new standard, including possible adoption alternatives, will have on its consolidated financial statements.

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-08, "Presentation of Financial Statements (Topic 205) and Property, Plant, and Equipment (Topic 360): Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disclosures of Disposals of Components of an Entity." This ASU changes the criteria for a disposal to qualify as discontinued operations and requires new disclosures for individually material disposal transactions that do not meet the definition of a discontinued operation. Under the new standard, companies report discontinued operations when they have a disposal that represents a strategic shift that has or will have a major impact on operations or financial results. This update was applied prospectively and became effective for annual periods, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2014. This standard did not have a material effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements, but will impact the reporting of any future dispositions.

Table of Contents

(3) BUSINESS COMBINATION

Stream Acquisition
Background and Financing

On January 6, 2014, the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary (Merger Sub) entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the Merger Agreement) with Stream and, for limited purposes, other Sellers listed in the Merger Agreement. On March 3, 2014, Merger Sub was merged with and into Stream (the Merger), with Stream continuing as the surviving corporation and as a wholly owned subsidiary of Convergys. At the time of the Merger, each share of Stream common stock was converted into the right to receive an amount in cash, without interest.

The total purchase price, net of cash acquired, was \$802.6, which was funded using available cash, borrowings under the Accounts Receivable Securitization Facility and proceeds from a term loan under the February 28, 2014 Credit Agreement (the Credit Agreement). The Credit Agreement consisted of a term loan in the amount of \$350.0 and a revolving credit facility in the amount of \$300.0 (see Note 9, "Debt and Capital Lease Obligations" for the definition of these terms and further discussion).

The purchase price of Stream consisted of the following items:

Cash consideration for Stream stock (1)	\$481.0	
Cash consideration for Stream stock options (2)	16.1	
Cash consideration for repayment of Stream 11.25% Senior Secured Notes (3)	243.0	
Cash consideration for repayment of Stream 10.0% Promissory Notes (4)	19.3	
Cash consideration for repayment of Stream Revolving Credit Facility (5)	63.4	
Cash consideration for transaction expenses of Stream (6)	7.8	
Total cash consideration	830.6	
Cash acquired ⁽⁷⁾	(28.0)
Net consideration transferred	\$802.6	

- (1) The cash consideration for the outstanding shares of Stream's common stock, which includes final settlement for working capital. Stream outstanding common shares totaled 0.7 as of March 3, 2014.
- (2) The cash consideration paid per share of "in the money" stock option awards.
- (3) The cash consideration to repay Stream's 11.25% Senior Secured Notes due 2014, which reflects the aggregate principal and interest amounts of \$230.0 and \$13.0, respectively, as of March 3, 2014.
- (4) The cash consideration to repay Stream's 10.0% Promissory Notes, which reflects the aggregate principal and interest amounts of \$16.1 and \$3.2, respectively, as of March 3, 2014.
- (5) The cash consideration to repay Stream's Revolving Credit Facility, which reflects the aggregate principal and interest amounts of \$63.1 and \$0.3, respectively, as of March 3, 2014.
 - Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Convergys reimbursed the holders of Stream common stock for expenses
- (6) incurred by Stream in connection with the merger. These expenses primarily related to third-party consulting services.
- (7) Represents the Stream cash balance acquired at acquisition.

The Company incurred \$14.7 of direct transaction costs during 2014. These costs are included in Transaction and integration costs in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income.

Purchase Price Allocation

The Company accounted for Stream using the acquisition method of accounting in accordance with applicable U.S. GAAP whereby the total purchase price was allocated to tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on respective fair values. The following table summarizes the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition:

Table of Contents

Purchase price allocation	At March 3, 2014	At March 3, 2014	
Assets:			
Receivables	\$197.9		
Other current assets	13.5		
Property and equipment	159.3		
Goodwill	276.5		
Intangible assets	370.4		
Other assets	7.9		
Liabilities:			
Accounts payable	(12.3)	
Accrued expenses	(100.3)	
Other current liabilities	(3.6)	
Debt	(34.6)	
Deferred tax - net	(59.4)	
Other long-term liabilities	(12.7)	
Total purchase price	\$802.6		

As of March 31, 2015, the purchase price allocation for the acquisition was final. Goodwill was calculated as the excess of the consideration transferred over the net assets recognized and represents the estimated future economic benefits arising from other assets acquired that could not be individually identified and separately recognized. The factors contributing to the recognition of goodwill were based on several strategic and synergistic benefits that are expected to be realized from the Stream acquisition. The benefits include an enhanced global footprint and expanded language capabilities. None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes and goodwill was entirely allocated to the Customer Management - Agent Services reporting unit for purposes of the evaluation for any future goodwill impairment.

Intangible Assets Identified

The following details the total intangible assets identified:

Intangible asset type	Value	Life (years)
Customer relationship	\$352.0	17
Trade name	17.0	4
Favorable lease contract	1.4	1 -7
Total	\$370.4	

The fair value of the customer relationship asset was determined using the income approach through an excess earnings analysis, with projected earnings discounted at a rate of 11.0%. The customer relationship intangible asset represents relationships between Stream and its customers. Convergys applied the income approach through a relief-from-royalty analysis to determine the fair value of the Stream trade name asset. The determination of the useful lives was based upon consideration of market participant assumptions and transaction specific factors.

Impact on Operating Results

The results of Stream's operations have been included in Convergys' Consolidated Financial Statements since the March 3, 2014 date of acquisition. The following table provides revenue and results of operations from the acquired Stream business included in Convergys' results:

Table of Contents

Stream results of operations	Three Months Ended	Nine Months Ended
	September 30, 2014	September 30, 2014
Revenues	\$247.4	\$581.5
Income before income taxes	\$7.2	\$2.0

The following unaudited pro forma information assumes the acquisition of Stream occurred at the beginning of the Company's prior year, January 1, 2014. The unaudited pro forma information presented below is for illustrative purposes only and does not reflect future events that may occur or any operating efficiencies or inefficiencies that may result from the Stream acquisition and related financing. Additionally, this unaudited pro forma information for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 includes certain one-time costs associated with the Company's integration of the acquired Stream operations. Therefore, the information is not necessarily indicative of results that would have been achieved had the business been combined during the periods presented or the results that the Company will experience going forward.

	Nine Months Ended
Unaudited pro forma information	September 30, 2014
Revenues	\$2,263.0
Income from Continuing Operations, net of tax	\$62.8
Earnings from Continuing Operations per share	
Basic	\$0.62
Diluted	\$0.59
Weighted average common shares outstanding	
Basic	101.0
Diluted	105.7

(4) DIVESTITURES AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On May 16, 2012, the Company completed the sale of its Information Management line of business to NEC Corporation. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, the Company recorded additional gains and losses as certain contingencies and tax positions related to Information Management were settled or adjusted.

The results of the Information Management business have been classified as discontinued operations for all periods presented. During the nine months ended September 30, 2014, the Company earned \$8.2 in revenue under transition services agreements. All transition services agreements expired by June 30, 2014, and the Company has substantially eliminated the related costs.

The results of the Information Management business included in discontinued operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014 are summarized as follows:

	Three Months Ended September		Nine Months Ended September	
	30,		30,	
	2015	2014	2015	2014
Revenue	\$ —	\$—	\$ —	\$—
(Loss) gain on disposition	(0.2) —	0.1	0.5
(Loss) income before income taxes	(0.2) —	0.1	0.5
Income tax benefit:				
Benefit related to gain on disposition	0.7	2.8	0.5	2.7
Income from discontinued operations, net of ta	x\$0.5	\$2.8	\$0.6	\$3.2

(5) EARNINGS PER SHARE AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Earnings per Share

The following is a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator of the basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) computations:

Table of Contents

		Continuing	Operations		Discontinue	d Operations	Total	
Three Months Ended September 30, 2015	Shares	Income	Per Share Amount		Income	Per Share Amount	Per Share Amount	
Basic EPS	97.9	\$57.6	\$0.59		\$0.5	\$ —	\$0.59	
Effect of dilutive securities:								
Stock-based compensation arrangements	0.8	_	(0.01)	_	_	(0.01))
Convertible Debt	5.4	_	(0.03)	/	_	0.01	(0.02))
Diluted EPS	104.1	\$57.6	\$0.55		\$0.5	\$0.01	\$0.56	
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2015								
Basic EPS	98.4	\$125.8	\$1.28		\$0.6	\$—	\$1.28	
Effect of dilutive securities:								
Stock-based compensation arrangements	0.8		(0.01)			(0.01)
Convertible Debt	5.4		(0.07))		0.01	(0.06))
Diluted EPS	104.6	\$125.8	\$1.20		\$0.6	\$0.01	\$1.21	
Three Months Ended September 30, 2014								
Basic EPS	100.7	\$30.0	\$0.30		\$2.8	\$0.03	\$0.33	
Effect of dilutive securities:								
Stock-based compensation arrangements	0.8		(0.01)			(0.01)
Convertible Debt	3.7		(0.01)	_	_	(0.01))
Diluted EPS	105.2	\$30.0	\$0.28		\$2.8	\$0.03	\$0.31	
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014								
Basic EPS	101.0	\$68.5	\$0.68		\$3.2	\$0.03	\$0.71	
Effect of dilutive securities:								
Stock-based compensation arrangements	1.0		(0.01)	_		(0.01)
Convertible Debt	3.7	_	(0.02)	_		(0.02)
Diluted EPS	105.7	\$68.5	\$0.65		\$3.2	\$0.03	\$0.68	

The diluted EPS calculation for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 excludes the effect of 0.3 performance-based restricted stock units as the minimum performance criteria has not yet been achieved, as well as 0.7 performance-based restricted stock units (0.4 and 0.3 granted in 2015 and 2014, respectively) as the performance criteria for the third year of the 2014 grants and the second and third years of the 2015 grants have not yet been fully defined, thereby precluding a mutual understanding of the terms of the stock-based awards under U.S. GAAP. As described more fully in Note 9, during 2009, the Company issued approximately \$125.0 aggregate principal amount of 5.75% Junior Subordinated Convertible Debentures due 2029 (2029 Convertible Debentures). The 2029 Convertible Debentures were convertible, subject to certain conditions, into common shares of the Company at an initial conversion price of \$12.07 per share, or eighty-two and eighty-two hundredths shares per one thousand dollars in principal amount of debentures. The conversion rate is subject to adjustment for certain events outlined in the indenture governing the debentures (the Indenture), including payment of dividends. As of September 30, 2015, the implied conversion price for the 2029 Convertible Debentures was \$11.54 per share, or eighty-six and sixty-seven hundredths shares per one thousand dollars in principal amount of debentures. There were 5.4 dilutive shares related to the 2029 Convertible Debentures for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015. Shareholders' Equity

The Company repurchased 0.9 and 2.3 of its common shares during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 at average prices of \$23.38 and \$22.68 per share for total repurchases of \$20.1 and \$52.8 under the standing share repurchase authorizations approved by the Company's Board of Directors. Based upon timing of the transactions, \$1.2 of shares repurchased had not settled as of September 30, 2015. These shares are excluded from outstanding shares at the end of the current quarter and

Table of Contents

were settled in cash during the fourth quarter of 2015. On August 4, 2015, the Company's Board of Directors approved an increase in the Company's share repurchase authorization to \$250.0 of common shares in the aggregate. As of September 30, 2015, the Company had the authority to repurchase an additional \$234.4 of outstanding common shares pursuant to current authorizations.

Dividends

During 2014 and 2015, the Company's Board of Directors approved, and the Company has paid, the following dividends per common share:

Announcement Date	Record Date	Dividend Amount	Payment Date
November 6, 2013	December 27, 2013	\$0.06	January 10, 2014
February 5, 2014	March 21, 2014	\$0.06	April 4, 2014
May 12, 2014	June 19, 2014	\$0.07	July 3, 2014
August 11, 2014	September 19, 2014	\$0.07	October 3, 2014
November 5, 2014	December 26, 2014	\$0.07	January 9, 2015
February 18, 2015	March 20, 2015	\$0.07	April 3, 2015
May 5, 2015	June 18, 2015	\$0.08	July 2, 2015
August 4, 2015	September 18, 2015	\$0.08	October 2, 2015

On November 4, 2015, the Company announced that its Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of \$0.08 per common share to be paid on January 8, 2016 to shareholders of record as of December 24, 2015. The Board expects that future cash dividends will be paid on a quarterly basis. However, any decision to pay future cash dividends will be subject to Board approval, and will depend on the Company's future earnings, cash flow, financial condition, financial covenants and other relevant factors.

(6) EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company sponsors a frozen defined benefit pension plan, which includes both a qualified and non-qualified portion, for eligible employees in the U.S. (the Cash Balance Plan). The Company recorded a net liability of \$47.9 and \$69.1 as of September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively, for the Cash Balance Plan. The Company contributed \$20.0 to fund the Cash Balance Plan during the nine months ended September 30, 2015. In addition, the Company sponsors unfunded defined benefit plans for certain eligible employees in the Philippines and France. The Company recorded a liability of \$39.1 and \$40.0 as of September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively, for these non-U.S. pension plans. Components of pension cost for the Cash Balance and the non-U.S. pension plans are as follows:

	Three Months Ended September		Nine Months Ended Septemb			ber		
	30,				30,			
	2015		2014		2015		2014	
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation	\$2.4		\$2.4		\$7.8		\$7.7	
Service cost	1.9		1.7		5.7		5.0	
Expected return on plan assets	(2.4)	(2.3)	(7.6)	(6.9)
Amortization and deferrals, net	2.3		2.1		7.7		6.0	
Settlement charge			2.9		_		2.9	
Total cost	\$4.2		\$6.8		\$13.6		\$14.7	

On July 25, 2013, the Company's Board of Directors authorized the Company to reinstate the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan (the EDCP), effective January 1, 2014, for eligible participants, including executive officers. This plan was previously frozen as of December 31, 2011. Under this plan, the Company matches up to 100% of the first 3% of a participant's deferred amounts and 50% of a participant's next 2% of deferred amounts. The Company match under the EDCP is reduced by the Company match available under the Company's Retirement and Savings Plan.

Components of pension cost for the EDCP are as follows:

Table of Contents

	Three Months Ended		Nine Months Ended Septem	
	September 30,		30,	
	2015	2014	2015	2014
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation	\$0.1	\$0.1	\$0.3	\$0.4
Service cost	0.3	0.3	1.1	0.9
Total cost	\$0.4	\$0.4	\$1.4	\$1.3

(7) RESTRUCTURING

2015 Restructuring

The Company recorded severance expense of \$0.1 and \$3.5, respectively, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, related to the Company's ongoing efforts to refine its operating model and reduce costs. The 2015 actions impacted approximately 200 employees. The severance expense is included in Restructuring charges on the Consolidated Statements of Income and is expected to be substantially paid in cash by June 30, 2016. The total remaining liability under these severance-related actions, which is included in Payables and other current liabilities on the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheet, was \$0.9 as of September 30, 2015, \$1.4 as of June 30, 2015 and \$1.0 as of March 31, 2015.

The Company also recorded restructuring expenses of \$0.1 and \$0.4, respectively, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, related to the integration of Stream. These amounts are included in Transaction and integration costs in the Consolidated Statements of Income and are expected to be substantially paid in cash by March 31, 2016. The total remaining liability under these severance-related actions, which is included in Payables and other current liabilities on the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheets, was \$0.1 as of September 30, 2015, \$0.3 as of June 30, 2015 and \$0.3 as of March 31, 2015.

2014 Restructuring

During 2014, the Company recorded severance charges of \$11.0 related to the elimination of certain redundant executive and non-executive positions as a result of the Company's integration of the Stream business. This severance activity impacted approximately 150 employees. These severance-related charges were fully paid in cash by September 30, 2015, pursuant to the Company's severance policies. The total remaining liability was \$2.6 at December 31, 2014.

During 2014, the Company also recorded a severance charge of \$1.7 related to restructuring actions impacting approximately 400 employees. These actions were initiated to continue the Company's efforts to refine its operating model and reduce costs. The severance charges are included in Restructuring charges on the Consolidated Statement of Income and are expected to be substantially paid in cash by December 31, 2015. The total remaining liability under this severance-related restructuring plan, which is included in Payables and other current liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, was \$0.3 as of September 30, 2015, \$0.7 as of June 30, 2015, \$0.8 as of March 31, 2015 and \$1.3 as of December 31, 2014.

(8) STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

The Company's operating results for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 included stock compensation expense of \$4.3 and \$12.6, respectively, compared to \$2.4 and \$7.6, respectively, for the same period in 2014. The increased expense in 2015 is primarily a result of expense related to the performance-based restricted stock units granted in 2013. Expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 included \$0.5 and \$1.1, respectively, related to awards classified as liabilities that will ultimately settle in cash.

Stock Options

The Company granted stock options to certain employees during 2012 and 2011. A summary of stock option activity for the nine months ended September 30, 2015 is presented below:

Table of Contents

			Weighted	Weighted
		Weighted	Average	Average
Shares in Millions Except Per Share Amounts	Shares	Average	Remaining	Fair Value at
		Exercise Price	Contractual Term	Date of Grant
			(in years)	(per share)
Options outstanding at January 1, 2015	0.7	\$13.24	6.6	\$3.72
Options exercisable at January 1, 2015	0.5	\$13.41	6.5	\$3.84
Granted	_	_		
Exercised	(0.2)	13.13		
Forfeited				
Options outstanding at September 30, 2015	0.5	\$13.28	5.9	\$3.75
Options exercisable at September 30, 2015	0.5	\$13.28	5.9	\$3.75

Time-based Restricted Stock Units

During the nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, the Company granted 0.7 shares of time-based restricted stock units in each year. The weighted-average fair values of these grants were \$22.31 and \$20.53 per share, respectively. The 2015, 2014 and 2013 time-based grants are scheduled to vest 25% at the first anniversary of the grant date, 25% at the second anniversary and 50% at the third anniversary.

The total compensation cost related to non-vested time-based restricted stock units not yet recognized as of September 30, 2015 was approximately \$18.3, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.1 years. Changes to non-vested time-based restricted stock and restricted stock units for the nine months ended September 30, 2015 were as follows:

Number of Shares	Average Fair Value at Date of Grant
1.3	\$17.66
0.7	22.31
(0.5) 16.42
(0.1) 20.55
1.4	\$20.13
	1.3 0.7 (0.5 (0.1

Performance-based Restricted Stock Units

During the nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, the Company granted 0.4 and 0.3 shares, respectively, of performance-based restricted stock units. These grants provide for payout based upon the extent to which the Company achieves certain EPS targets, as determined by the Compensation and Benefits Committee of the Board of Directors, over three-year periods. Payout levels range from 50% to 200% of award shares earned. No payout can be earned if performance is below the minimum threshold level. As the targets for the third year of 2014 grants and the second and third years of 2015 grants have not yet been set, the key terms have not been effectively communicated to the recipients, and as such the expense related to these grants cannot be recognized until the key terms are established. These grants have been excluded from the table below.

During the three months ended March 31, 2015, the Company established and communicated to participants the final key terms of the 2013 grant, resulting in a grant for accounting purposes with a grant date fair value of \$21.84 per share. The total compensation cost related to non-vested performance-based restricted stock units not yet recognized as of September 30, 2015 was approximately \$1.6, which is expected to be recognized ratably over the remaining vesting period ending in February 2016. Changes to non-vested performance-based restricted stock and restricted stock units for the nine months ended September 30, 2015 were as follows:

Weighted

Table of Contents

		Weighted
Shares in Millions Except Per Share Amounts	Number of	Average Fair
Shares in Minions Except Let Share Amounts	Shares	Value at Date
		of Grant
Non-vested at December 31, 2014	_	\$—
Granted	0.3	21.84
Vested	_	_
Forfeited	_	_
Non-vested at September 30, 2015	0.3	\$21.84

(9) DEBT AND CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

Debt and capital lease obligations consist of the following:

	September 30,	December 31,
	2015	2014
Term Loan, due 2019	\$211.8	\$261.0
Convertible Debentures, due 2029	61.7	60.7
Capital Lease Obligations	8.2	14.2
Accounts Receivable Securitization	50.0	40.0
Total debt	331.7	375.9
Less current maturities	4.0	7.5
Long-term debt	\$327.7	\$368.4
Credit Facility		

On February 28, 2014, the Company entered into a Credit Agreement establishing an unsecured credit facility in the aggregate amount of \$650.0 (Credit Agreement). In connection with entering into the Credit Agreement, Convergys terminated its \$300.0 Four-Year Competitive Advance and Revolving Credit Facility Agreement dated March 11, 2011. The Credit Agreement consists of unsecured term loans (the Term Loan) in the initial aggregate amount of \$350.0, and an unsecured revolving credit facility (the Revolving Credit Facility) in the amount of \$300.0. The Company recorded the initial carrying amount of the Term Loan at \$344.9, reflecting a discount of \$5.1 resulting from fees paid directly to the lenders at issuance. The discount will be amortized over the life of the Term Loan using the effective interest rate method (2.5% as of September 30, 2015), and is included in interest expense in the Consolidated Statements of Income. The Term Loan and the Revolving Credit Facility mature on March 3, 2019, unless extended pursuant to the terms of the Credit Agreement. Outstanding amounts bear interest at the applicable rate described in the Credit Agreement. During 2015 and 2014, the Company made voluntary Term Loan principal payments of \$50.0 and \$85.0, respectively. The next required principal payment is due March 3, 2019. While amounts borrowed and repaid under the Revolving Credit Facility may be re-borrowed, amounts repaid under the Term Loan may not be borrowed again under the Credit Agreement. Total borrowing capacity remaining under the Revolving Credit Facility was \$300.0, with \$215.0 outstanding principal on the Term Loan, as of September 30, 2015. The Credit Agreement contains certain affirmative and negative covenants, as well as other terms and conditions that are customary for credit facilities of this type, including financial covenants for leverage and interest coverage ratios. The Company was in compliance with all covenants at September 30, 2015.

Convertible Debentures

During 2009, Convergys issued a total of \$125.0 aggregate principal amount of 5.75% Junior Subordinated Convertible Debentures due September 2029 (2029 Convertible Debentures) in exchange for \$122.5 of 4.875% Unsecured Senior Notes (4.875% Senior Notes) due December 15, 2009, pursuant to an exchange offer. At the date of issuance, the Company recognized the liability component of the 2029 Convertible Debenture at its fair value of \$56.3. The liability component is recognized as the fair value of a similar instrument that does not have a conversion feature at issuance. The equity component, which is the value of the conversion feature at issuance, was recognized as

the difference between the proceeds from the issuance of the debentures and the fair value of the liability component, after adjusting for the deferred tax impact of \$32.7. The 2029 Convertible Debentures were issued at a coupon rate of 5.75%, which was below that of a similar instrument that does not have a conversion feature. Therefore, the valuation of the debt component, using the income approach, resulted in a debt discount. The debt discount is being amortized over the life of a similar debt instrument without a conversion feature, which the Company determined to equal the contractual maturity of the 2029 Convertible Debentures. Amortization is based upon the effective interest rate method and is included in interest expense in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Table of Contents

The 2029 Convertible Debentures, which pay a fixed rate of interest semi-annually, have a contingent interest component that will require the Company to pay additional interest if the trading price of the Debentures exceeds a specified threshold at specified times, commencing on September 15, 2019, as outlined in the Indenture. The maximum amount of contingent interest that will accrue is 0.75% per annum of the average trading price of the Debentures during the periods specified in the Indenture. The fair value of this embedded derivative was not significant at September 30, 2015 or December 31, 2014.

The Company is not entitled to redeem the 2029 Convertible Debentures prior to September 15, 2019. On or after September 15, 2019, the Company may redeem for cash all or part of the 2029 Convertible Debentures at par value plus accrued but unpaid interest if certain trading conditions of the Company's common stock are satisfied. The holders of the 2029 Convertible Debentures have the option to require redemption at par value plus accrued but unpaid interest upon the occurrence of a fundamental change, a defined term in the Indenture.

The 2029 Convertible Debentures are convertible at the option of the holders on or after September 15, 2028 and prior to that date only under the following circumstances: (1) during any calendar quarter commencing after December 31, 2009, if the last reported sales price of the Company's common stock for at least 20 trading days (whether or not consecutive) during a period of 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day of the preceding calendar quarter is greater than or equal to 130% of the applicable conversion price (currently \$15.00) for the 2029 Convertible Debentures on each applicable trading day (hereinafter referred to as the Sales Price Condition); (2) during the five business day period immediately following any five consecutive trading day period (the Measurement Period) in which, as determined following a request by a holder of 2029 Convertible Debentures as provided in the Indenture, the trading price per \$1,000 principal amount of 2029 Convertible Debentures for each trading day of such Measurement Period was less than 98% of the product of the last reported sale price of the Company's common shares and the applicable conversion rate for the 2029 Convertible Debentures on each such trading day; (3) if the Company elects to redeem any or all of the 2029 Convertible Debentures; or (4) upon the occurrence of specified corporate events pursuant to the terms of the Indenture. Upon conversion, the Company will pay cash up to the aggregate principal amount of the 2029 Convertible Debentures to be converted and pay or deliver, as the case may be, cash, common shares of the Company or a combination of cash and common shares of the Company, at the Company's election, in respect of the remainder, if any, of the Company's conversion obligation in excess of the aggregate principal amount of the 2029 Convertible Debentures being converted.

The 2029 Convertible Debentures were convertible, subject to certain conditions, into common shares of the Company at an initial conversion price of approximately \$12.07 per share, or eighty-two and eighty-two hundredths shares per one thousand dollars in principal amount of debentures. As of September 30, 2015, the implied conversion price for the 2029 Convertible Debentures was \$11.54 per share, or eighty-six and sixty-seven hundredths shares per one thousand dollars in principal amount of debentures. The conversion rate is subject to adjustment for certain events outlined in the Indenture, including payment of dividends.

As of September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the 2029 Convertible Debentures were convertible at the option of the holders. This conversion right was triggered upon satisfaction of the Sales Price Condition (the closing price of the Company's common shares was greater than or equal to \$15.00, 130% of the conversion price of the 2029 Convertible Debentures at September 30, 2015, for at least 20 of the last 30 consecutive trading days ending on September 30, 2015). As a result, the equity component of the 2029 Convertible Debentures equal to \$63.3 (the difference between the par value and carrying value of the 2029 Convertible Debentures at September 30, 2015) has been classified as temporary equity within the September 30, 2015 Consolidated Balance Sheet since this amount was considered redeemable. The Company will reassess the convertibility of the 2029 Convertible Debentures and the related balance sheet classification on a prospective basis. There have been no conversions of the 2029 Convertible Debentures through the date of this filing.

Based on quoted market prices at September 30, 2015, the fair value of the \$125.0 aggregate principal amount of the Company's 2029 Convertible Debentures is \$264.6.

Asset Securitization Facility

During January 2014, the Company extended the terms of an asset securitization facility collateralized by accounts receivable of certain of the Company's subsidiaries, with a purchase limit of \$150.0 expiring in January 2017. During

June 2015, the Company amended the asset securitization facility to include the receivables of certain of the Company's Stream subsidiaries. The asset securitization program is conducted through Convergys Funding Inc., a wholly-owned bankruptcy remote subsidiary of the Company. On March 13, 2015, the Company entered into an amendment to the asset securitization facility to adjust the maximum Debt-to-EBITDA ratio permitted under the terms of the facility. As of September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, Convergys had drawn \$50.0 and \$40.0, respectively, in available funding from qualified receivables. Amounts drawn under this facility have been classified as long-term debt within the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

At September 30, 2015, future minimum payments of the Company's debt and capital lease arrangements (exclusive of any debt discounts) are as follows:

Table of Contents

2015	\$2.0
2016	3.8
2017	50.9
2018	0.7
2019	215.4
2020	0.4
Thereafter	125.0
Total	\$398.2

(10) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commitments

At September 30, 2015, the Company had outstanding letters of credit of \$23.5 and other bond obligations of \$2.7 related to performance and payment guarantees. The Company believes that any guarantee obligation that may arise will not be material. The Company also has purchase commitments with telecommunications providers of \$1.4 for the remainder of 2015.

At September 30, 2015, the Company had an outstanding performance bond obligation of \$30.0 related to a performance and payment guarantee for the Company's former HR Management line of business, which was sold in 2010 to NorthgateArinso. Subsequent to completion of the sale of the HR Management business, the Company continues to be responsible for this bond obligation. As part of the gain on disposition of the HR Management business, the Company recognized a liability equal to the then present value of probability weighted cash flows of potential outcomes, a Level 3 fair value measurement. Although the buyer is obligated to indemnify the Company for any and all losses, costs, liabilities and expenses incurred related to this performance bond, as of September 30, 2015, the Company maintains a liability of \$0.3 for this obligation. The Company's guarantee for this bond obligation expires in August 2016.

Contingencies

The Company from time to time is subject to various loss contingencies, including tax and legal contingencies that arise in the ordinary course of business. The Company accrues for a loss contingency when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of such loss can be reasonably estimated. At this time, the Company believes that any such contingencies, either individually or in the aggregate, will not have a materially adverse effect on the Company's results of operations or financial condition. However, the outcome of litigation cannot be predicted with certainty, and unfavorable resolution of one or more pending matters could have a materially adverse impact on the Company's results of operations or financial condition in the future.

In November 2011, one of the Company's call center clients, Hyundai Motor America (Hyundai), tendered a contractual indemnity claim to Convergys Customer Management Group Inc., a subsidiary of the Company, relating to a putative class action captioned Brandon Wheelock, individually and on behalf of a class and subclass of similarly situated individuals, v. Hyundai Motor America, Orange County Superior Court, California, Case No. 30-2011-00522293-CU-BT-CJC. The lawsuit alleged that Hyundai violated California's telephone recording laws by recording telephone calls with customer service representatives without providing a disclosure that the calls might be recorded.

An amended settlement agreement was executed by the plaintiff, Hyundai and Convergys Customer Management Group, Inc., and received preliminary approval from the Court during the second quarter of 2015. The Court will hold a hearing during the fourth quarter of 2015 to determine whether to give final approval of the settlement. The Company's liability with respect to the proposed settlement was fully accrued at September 30, 2015, and did not have a material impact on the Company's liquidity, results of operations or financial condition.

(11) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

U.S. GAAP defines a hierarchy which prioritizes the inputs in measuring fair value. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; Level 2 inputs are quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets or inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly through market corroboration, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument; and Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs based on the Company's assumptions used to measure assets and liabilities at fair value. A financial asset or liability's classification within the hierarchy is determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

Table of Contents

At September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the Company had foreign currency forward contracts measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The fair values of these instruments were measured using valuations based upon quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets (Level 2) and are valued by reference to similar financial instruments, adjusted for terms specific to the contracts. There were no transfers between the three levels of the fair value hierarchy during the nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014. The assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014 were as follows:

	September 30, 2015	Quoted Prices In Active Markets for Identical Assets (Level 1)	Significant Other Observable Inputs (Level 2)	Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)
Derivatives:				
Foreign currency forward contracts (asset position)	\$1.1	\$ —	\$1.1	\$ —
Foreign currency forward contracts (liability position)	\$56.2	\$ —	\$56.2	\$ —
Desirations	December 31, 2014	Quoted Prices In Active Markets for Identical Assets (Level 1)	Other Observable Inputs (Level 2)	Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)
Derivatives:	2014	In Active Markets for Identical Assets	Other Observable Inputs (Level 2)	Unobservable Inputs
	\$3.3	In Active Markets for Identical Assets	Other Observable Inputs	Unobservable Inputs

The Company also had investment securities held in a grantor trust for the benefit of participants of the EDCP measured at fair value at September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014. The fair value of these instruments was measured using the quoted prices in active markets for identical assets (Level 1). There were no transfers between the three levels of the fair value hierarchy during the nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014. The assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014 were as follows:

	September 30, 2015	Quoted Prices In Active Markets for Identical Assets (Level 1)	Significant Other Observable Inputs (Level 2)	Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)
Investment securities:	4.0.2	.		4
Mutual funds	\$9.3	\$ 9.3	\$—	\$—
Convergys common stock	1.7	1.7	_	_
Money market accounts	0.7	0.7		
Total	\$11.7	\$ 11.7	\$ —	\$ —
	December 31, 2014	Quoted Prices In Active Markets for Identical Assets (Level 1)	Significant Other Observable Inputs (Level 2)	Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)
Investment securities:				
Mutual funds	\$10.3	\$ 10.3	\$	\$—

Convergys common stock	2.1	2.1	 _
Money market accounts	0.6	0.6	 _
Total	\$13.0	\$ 13.0	\$ \$

(12) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivative Instruments

Table of Contents

The Company is exposed to a variety of market risks, including the effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Company's risk management strategy includes the use of derivative instruments to reduce the effects on its operating results and cash flows from fluctuations caused by volatility in currency exchange rates. The Company serves many of its U.S.-based clients using contact center capacity in various countries such as the Philippines, India, Canada, China, Malaysia, Egypt, Costa Rica, Colombia, Dominican Republic, El Salvador, Nicaragua and Honduras. Although the contracts with these clients are typically priced in U.S. dollars, a substantial portion of the costs incurred to deliver services under these contracts are denominated in the local currency of the country where services are provided, which represents a foreign exchange exposure. The Company has hedged a portion of its exposure related to the anticipated cash flow requirements denominated in some of the aforementioned foreign currencies by entering into forward exchange contracts with several financial institutions to acquire a total of PHP 37,149.0 at a fixed price of \$825.9 at various dates through September 2018, INR 10,347.0 at a fixed price of \$150.4 at various dates through September 2018, CAD 41.8 at a fixed price of \$33.8 at various dates through April 2018 and COP 16,000.0 at a fixed price of \$5.2 at various dates through May 2016. These instruments mature within the next 36 months and had a notional value of \$1,015.3 at September 30, 2015 and \$1,131.7 at December 31, 2014. The derivative instruments discussed above are designated and effective as cash flow hedges. The following table reflects the fair values of these derivative instruments:

	September 30, 2015	December 31, 2014
Forward exchange contracts and options designated as hedging instruments:		
Included within other current assets	\$0.9	\$1.7
Included within other non-current assets	0.2	1.3
Included within other current liabilities	32.0	21.4
Included within other long-term liabilities	22.4	11.3

The Company recorded a net deferred tax benefit of \$20.5 and \$11.3 related to these derivatives at September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively. A total of \$32.9 and \$18.3 of deferred losses, net of tax, related to these cash flow hedges at September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively, were included in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (OCI). As of September 30, 2015, deferred losses of \$31.2 (\$19.2 net of tax) on derivative instruments included in accumulated OCI are expected to be reclassified into earnings during the next twelve months. The following table provides the effect of these derivative instruments on the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014:

	Loss Recognized in C on Derivative (Effective Portion)	OC	Loss I Reclassified from Accumulated Country Income (Effective Portion)		Location of Loss Reclassified
Three Months Ended September 30, 2015					
Foreign exchange contracts	\$ (36.4)	\$(7.9)	- Cost of providing services and products sold and Selling, general and administrative
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2015					
Foreign exchange contracts	\$ (39.5)	\$(15.8)	- Cost of providing services and products sold and Selling, general and administrative
Three Months Ended September 30, 2014					
Foreign exchange contracts	\$ (36.5)	\$(1.3)	- Cost of providing services and products sold and Selling, general and administrative

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014

Foreign exchange contracts \$ (11.6) \$ (9.9) products sold and Selling, general and administrative

The amount recognized related to the ineffective portion of the derivative instruments was not material for the nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014.

Table of Contents

The Company also enters into derivative instruments (forwards) to economically hedge the foreign currency impact of assets and liabilities denominated in nonfunctional currencies. The Company recorded a net gain of \$0.7 and \$0.2 during the nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, related to changes in fair value of these derivative instruments not designated as hedges. The gains and losses largely offset the currency gains and losses that resulted from changes in the assets and liabilities denominated in nonfunctional currencies. These gains and losses are classified within other income (expense), net in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income. The fair value of these derivative instruments not designated as hedges at September 30, 2015 was a \$1.8 payable. Short-Term Investments

In December 2011, the Company made investments in certain securities, included within Short-term investments in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, which are held in a grantor trust for the benefit of participants of the EDCP. This investment reflects the hypothetical investment balances of plan participants. As of September 30, 2015, the Company maintained investment securities with a fair value of \$11.7 classified as trading securities. The investment securities include exchange-traded mutual funds, common stock of the Company and money market accounts. These securities are carried at fair value, with gains and losses, both realized and unrealized, reported in other income, net in the Consolidated Statements of Income. The cost of securities sold is based upon the specific identification method. Interest and dividends on securities classified as trading are included in other income, net.

(13) INCOME TAXES

The effective tax rate on net income from continuing operations was a benefit of 41.9% and 5.1% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 compared to expense of 17.6% and 18.2%, respectively, in the same periods last year. The change in the effective tax rates for the periods ended September 30, 2015 is primarily due to a shift in the geographic mix of worldwide income and certain discrete items, including a \$17.5 net tax benefit recognized during the third quarter as a result of statute expirations for previous uncertain non-U.S. tax positions and a \$3.7 net tax benefit for a change in estimate between tax previously accrued for the repatriation of foreign earnings and the actual taxes paid on the ultimate repatriation of such earnings.

The effective tax rate for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 was impacted by a \$1.5 net tax benefit associated with the repatriation of certain foreign earnings. This included \$4.8 of tax benefit for a change in estimate between tax previously accrued on foreign earnings and estimated taxes payable on the ultimate repatriation of such earnings, partially offset by an additional \$3.3 of income tax expense related to 2014 foreign earnings that contributed to the funding of the Stream acquisition.

The liability for unrecognized tax benefits was \$32.5 and \$59.9 at September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively, and is included in other long-term liabilities in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. As of September 30, 2015, the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that would affect income tax expense if recognized in the Consolidated Financial Statements is \$28.6. This amount includes interest and penalties of \$7.2. It is reasonably possible that the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits will decrease between approximately \$4.0 and \$27.0 in the next twelve months; however, actual developments in this area could differ from those currently expected.

(14) GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE AND LONG-LIVED ASSETS

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill was \$834.8 at September 30, 2015 compared to \$850.7 at December 31, 2014. This decrease was primarily due to foreign currency translation. The Company tests goodwill for impairment annually as of October 1 and at other times if events have occurred or circumstances exist that indicate the carrying value of goodwill may no longer be recoverable. Goodwill impairment testing is performed at the reporting unit level. The Company's reporting units are Customer Management - Agent Services and Customer Management - Customer Interaction Technology (CIT). As of September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, all goodwill was held by the Customer Management - Agent Services

reporting unit.

The impairment test for goodwill involves a two-step process. The first step compares the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount, including the goodwill allocated to each reporting unit. If the carrying amount is in excess of the fair value, the second step requires the comparison of the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill with the carrying amount of the reporting unit goodwill. Any excess of the carrying value of the reporting unit goodwill over the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill will be recorded as an impairment loss. Fair value of the reporting units is determined using a combination of the market approach and the income approach. Under the market approach, fair value is based on actual stock price or transaction prices of comparable companies. Under the income approach, value is dependent on the present value of net cash flows to be derived from the ownership.

Table of Contents

Intangible assets decreased to \$330.9 at September 30, 2015 from \$361.7 at December 31, 2014, primarily due to amortization and foreign currency translation. As of September 30, 2015, the Company's total identifiable intangible assets consisted of the following:

	Gross Carrying	Accumulated	Net	
	Value	Amortization	net	
Software (classified within Property and Equipment, net)	\$41.3	\$(37.5)	\$3.8	
Trademarks	26.1	(16.3)	9.8	
Customer relationships and other intangibles	460.8	(143.5)	317.3	
Total	\$528.2	\$(197.3)	\$330.9	

The intangible assets are being amortized using the following amortizable lives: 4 years for trademarks, 8 to 10 years for software and 1 to 17 years for customer relationships and other intangibles. The remaining weighted average depreciation period for software is approximately 1 year. The remaining weighted average amortization period for trademarks, customer relationships and other intangibles is approximately 15 years. Amortization of software is included within depreciation expense as the underlying assets are classified within property, plant and equipment. Trademarks, customer relationships, and other intangibles amortization expense was \$20.6 and \$17.6 for the nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and is estimated to be approximately \$27.3 for the year ended December 31, 2015. The related estimated expense for the five subsequent years ended December 31 is as follows:

2016	\$27
2017	27
2018	23
2019	22
2020	21
Thereafter	200

(15) PAYABLES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

	At September 30, 2015	At December 31, 2014
Accounts payable	\$73.6	\$40.1
Deferred tax liability	0.3	0.6
Accrued income and other taxes	36.5	34.6
Accrued payroll-related expenses	166.5	156.4
Derivative liabilities	33.8	21.4
Accrued expenses, other	77.5	84.5
Deferred revenue and government grants	17.7	19.5
Restructuring and severance costs	1.3	3.9
	\$407.2	\$361.0

(16) ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

The following table summarizes the changes in the accumulated balances for each component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):

Table of Contents

Changes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) by Component

	Foreign Currency		Derivative Financial Instruments		Pension Liability		Total	
Balance at December 31, 2013 Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications, net of tax	\$35.1		\$(22.5)	\$(32.1)	\$(19.5)
	0.5		(3.8)	_		(3.3)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax	_		3.6		1.1		4.7	
Net current-period other comprehensive income (loss)	0.5		(0.2)	1.1		1.4	
Balance at March 31, 2014	\$35.6		\$(22.7)	\$(31.0)	\$(18.1)
Other comprehensive income before	5.9		18.3	,		,	24.2	,
reclassifications, net of tax Amounts reclassified from accumulated					1.2			
other comprehensive loss, net of tax	_		1.9		1.3		3.2	
Net current-period other comprehensive income	5.9		20.2		1.3		27.4	
Balance at June 30, 2014	\$41.5		\$(2.5)	\$(29.7)	\$9.3	
Other comprehensive loss before reclassifications, net of tax	(28.0)	(22.2)	(8.9)	(59.1)
Settlement of pension obligation, net of tax	_		_		1.8		1.8	
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax	_		0.9		1.0		1.9	
Net current-period other comprehensive loss	(28.0)	(21.3)	(6.1)	(55.4)
Balance at September 30, 2014	\$13.5	,	\$(23.8))	\$(35.8)	\$(46.1)
Balance at December 31, 2014	\$(1.1)	\$(18.3)	\$(47.3)	\$(66.7)
Other comprehensive (loss) income before reclassifications, net of tax	(28.9)	2.4		_		(26.5)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax	_		2.3		1.6		3.9	
Net current-period other comprehensive (loss)	(28.9)	4.7		1.6		(22.6)
income	`	_					·	,
Balance at March 31, 2015	\$(30.0)	\$(13.6)	\$(45.7)	\$(89.3)
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications, net of tax	10.1		(4.4)	_		5.7	
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax	_		2.6		1.6		4.2	
Net current-period other comprehensive	10.1		(1.0	`	1.6		0.0	
income (loss)	10.1		(1.8)	1.6		9.9	
Balance at June 30, 2015	\$(19.9)	\$(15.4)	\$(44.1)	\$(79.4)
Other comprehensive loss before reclassifications, net of tax	(8.9)	(22.4)	_		(31.3)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax	_		4.9		1.6		6.5	
Net current-period other comprehensive (loss) income	(8.9)	(17.5)	1.6		(24.8)

Balance at September 30, 2015 \$(28.8) \$(32.9) \$(42.5)

Table of Contents

The following table summarizes the reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):

Reclassifications from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Details about Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Components	Amount Recl Accumulated Comprehensi	O)	Affected Line Item in the Consolidated Statements of Income
	Three Months Ended September 30 2015		Nine Months Ended September 30 2015),	
Loss on derivative instruments	\$(7.9)	\$(15.8)	Cost of providing services and products sold and Selling, general and administrative
Tax benefit	3.0		6.0		Income tax expense
Loss on derivative instruments, net of tax	(4.9)	(9.8)	Income from Continuing Operations, net of tax
Adjustment of pension and other post employment obligations	(2.5)	(7.5)	Selling, general and administrative
Tax benefit	0.9		2.7		Income tax expense
Adjustment of pension and other post employment obligations, net of tax	(1.6)	(4.8)	Income from Continuing Operations, net of tax
Total reclassifications for the period	\$(6.5)	\$(14.6)	OI tax
	Three Months Ended September 30 2014		Nine Months Ended September 30 2014),	
Loss on derivative instruments	\$(1.3)	\$(9.9)	Cost of providing services and products sold and Selling, general and administrative
Tax benefit	0.4		3.5		Income tax (benefit) expense
Loss on derivative instruments, net of tax	(0.9)	(6.4)	
Settlement of pension obligations, net of tax	(2.9)	(2.9)	Selling, general and administrative
Tax benefit	1.1		1.1		Income tax (benefit) expense
Settlement of pension obligation, net of tax	(1.8)	(1.8)	, ,
Adjustment of pension and other post employment obligations	\$(1.6)	\$(5.5)	Selling, general and administrative
Tax benefit	\$0.6		\$2.1		Income tax (benefit) expense
Adjustment of pension and other post employment obligations, net of tax	\$(1.0)	\$(3.4)	
Settlement and adjustment of pension and other post employment obligations, net of tax	\$(2.8)	\$(5.2)	
Total reclassifications for the period					

Table of Contents

ITEM 2.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (Currency Amounts in Millions Except Per Share Amounts)

BACKGROUND

Convergys Corporation (we, the Company or Convergys) is a global leader in customer management, focused on bringing value to our clients through every customer interaction. Convergys has approximately 125,000 employees working in more than 150 locations in 31 countries, interacting with our clients' customers in 47 languages. As a global provider in the industry, Convergys has a history of commitment and dedication to excellence in serving many of the world's largest brands. Our business model allows us to deliver consistent, quality service, at the scale and in the geographies that meet our clients' business needs and pro-actively partner to solve client business challenges through our account management model. We leverage our geographic footprint and comprehensive capabilities to help leading companies create quality customer experiences across multiple interaction channels while increasing revenue and reducing their cost to serve. We are uniquely positioned as a well-capitalized leader in our market and are able to invest in the services, technology, and analytics that matter to our clients and their customers.

Operations and Structure

On March 3, 2014, Convergys completed its acquisition of SGS Holdings, Inc. (Stream), a global customer management leader providing technical support, customer care and sales for Fortune 1000 companies. This acquisition expanded the Company's geographic footprint and capabilities, adding approximately 40,000 employees in 22 countries. Stream's complementary client portfolio diversified Convergys' client base through the addition of leading technology, communications and other clients. Stream operating results are included in Convergys' Consolidated Statements of Income beginning March 3, 2014.

Agent-related revenues, which accounted for approximately 95% of revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2015, are typically recognized as the services are performed based on staffing hours or the number of contacts handled by service agents using contractual rates. Remaining revenues are derived from the sale of premise-based and hosted automated self-care and technology solutions and provision of professional services. Revenues from the sale of these solutions and provision of services are typically recognized as the services are provided over the duration of the contract using contractual rates.

We believe our clients benefit from our worldwide workforce located in key geographies throughout the world, including the United States, Canada, the Philippines, India, China, Indonesia, Malaysia, Costa Rica, Colombia, Dominican Republic, El Salvador, Nicaragua, Honduras, Australia, the U.K., France, Tunisia, Egypt, Bulgaria and other various countries throughout the EMEA region. The Stream acquisition noted above, expanded the Company's presence in North America, Latin America, and the Philippines. Most notably, the acquisition increased Convergys' presence in EMEA by adding Stream's sites across Eastern and Western Europe, as well as multiple sites in North Africa. As a result of this combination, Convergys has a more diversified client base and an enhanced ability to offer a wider range of customer transactions in a more cost effective manner from multiple geographies, at scale.

Additional Information

The Company files annual, quarterly and current reports and proxy statements with the SEC. These filings are available to the public over the Internet on the SEC's website at http://www.sec.gov and on the Company's website at http://www.convergys.com. You may also read and copy any document we file with the SEC at its public reference facilities in Washington, D.C. You can also obtain copies of the documents at prescribed rates by writing to the Public Reference Section of the SEC at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, DC 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the operation of the public reference facilities. You can also inspect reports, proxy statements and other information about Convergys at the offices of the New York Stock Exchange, 11 Wall Street, New York, New York 10005.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains statements, estimates, or projections that constitute "forward-looking statements" as defined under U.S. federal securities laws. Forward looking statements may be identified by words such as "will," "expect," "estimate," "think," "forecast," "guidance," "outlook," "plan," "lead," "project" or other comparable terminology. Forward-looking statem are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from our historical experience and our present expectations or projections. These risks include, but are not limited to: (i) the loss of a significant client or significant business from a client; (ii) the future financial performance of major industries that we serve; (iii) our failure to successfully acquire and integrate businesses; (iv) our inability to protect personally identifiable data against unauthorized access or unintended release; (v) our inability to maintain and upgrade our technology and network equipment in a timely and cost effective manner; (vi) international business and political risks, including economic weakness and operational disruption as a result of natural events, political unrest, war, terrorist attacks or other civil disruption; (vii) the effects of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations;

Table of Contents

(viii) the failure to meet expectations regarding the tax treatment of acquired or divested businesses; (ix) adverse effects of litigation and other commitments and contingencies; and (x) those factors contained in our periodic reports filed with the SEC, included in the "Risk Factors" section of our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K and Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. The forward-looking information in this document is given as of the date of the particular statement and we assume no duty to update this information.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues

	Three Mo	nths Ended		Nine Mont	Nine Months Ended						
	September	r 30,			September	September 30,					
	2015	2014	Change	%	2015	2014	Change	%			
Revenues:											
Communications	\$400.0	\$424.2	\$(24.2) (6) \$1,193.7	\$1,173.2	\$20.5	2			
Technology	159.4	144.9	14.5	10	453.0	377.2	75.8	20			
Financial Services	50.5	49.4	1.1	2	157.5	151.2	6.3	4			
Other	131.7	131.0	0.7	1	394.6	390.0	4.6	1			
Total Revenues	\$741.6	\$749.5	\$(7.9) (1) \$2,198.8	\$2,091.6	\$107.2	5			

Three Months Ended September 30, 2015 versus Three Months Ended September 30, 2014

Consolidated revenues for the third quarter of 2015 were \$741.6, a 1% decrease from \$749.5 in the same period in the prior year. Changes in currency exchange rates reduced revenues by approximately 3% in the current quarter as the U.S. dollar strengthened relative to the euro, British pound, Australian dollar and the Canadian dollar. Revenues from communications clients decreased 6% from the third quarter of 2014, reflecting volume declines with our largest client and unfavorable currency exchange rate impacts, partially offset by volume increases and new programs with other existing clients. Revenues from technology clients increased 10% from the third quarter of 2014, reflecting volume increases and new programs with existing clients, partially offset by unfavorable exchange rate impacts. Revenues from financial services clients increased 2% from the third quarter of 2014, due to a new client and a new program with an existing client. Other revenues, which are comprised of clients outside the Company's three largest industries, increased 1% from the third quarter of 2014. This increase is attributable to volume increases and new programs with existing clients, partially offset by unfavorable currency exchange rate impacts, and program completions with two clients.

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2015 versus Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014
Consolidated revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2015 were \$2,198.8, a 5% increase from \$2,091.6 in the same period in the prior year. The nine months ended September 30, 2014 exclude Stream revenue of \$171.4, primarily within the communications and technology verticals, for the two months preceding the acquisition. Changes in currency exchange rates reduced revenues by approximately 3% for the nine months ended September 30, 2015 as the U.S. dollar strengthened relative to the euro, British pound, Australian dollar and Canadian dollar. Revenues from communications clients increased 2% from the third quarter of 2014, reflecting two additional months of revenue related to Stream, volume increases with existing clients and new client ramps, partially offset by volume decreases with our largest client and unfavorable currency exchange rate impacts. Revenues from technology clients increased significantly from 2014, reflecting two additional months of revenue related to Stream, volume increases and new programs with existing clients, partially offset by unfavorable currency exchange rate impacts. Revenues from financial services clients increased 4% from 2014 due to volume increases and new clients, offset by program completions. Other revenues increased 1% from 2014. This increase is attributable to new clients and volume increases with existing clients, partially offset by a program completion with one client and unfavorable currency exchange rate impacts.

Operating Costs and Expenses

Table of Contents

	Three Mont September 3						Nine Month September 3					
	2015	2014	Change		%		2015	2014	Change		%	
Operating Costs:			C						C			
Cost of providing												
services and products sold	\$471.1	\$476.1	\$(5.0)	(1)	\$1,406.6	\$1,327.4	\$79.2		6	
Selling, general and administrative	175.9	177.5	(1.6)	(1)	513.5	499.1	14.4		3	
Research and development costs	1.8	1.9	(0.1)	(5)	5.4	5.7	(0.3)	(5)
Depreciation	35.2	38.8	(3.6)	(9)	108.1	104.8	3.3		3	
Amortization	6.6	7.3	(0.7)	(10)	20.6	17.6	3.0		17	
Restructuring	0.1	0.5	(0.4)	(80)	3.5	2.2	1.3		59	
Transaction and integration costs	3.1	5.4	(2.3)	(43)	7.8	35.5	(27.7)	(78)
Loss (gain) on sale of real estate	_	\$ —	_		NM		_	\$(1.6)	1.6		(100)
Total costs and expenses	\$693.8	\$707.5	\$(13.7)	(2)	\$2,065.5	\$1,990.7	74.8		4	

Three Months Ended September 30, 2015 versus Three Months Ended September 30, 2014

Total operating costs and expenses for the third quarter of 2015 of \$693.8 decreased 2% from \$707.5 in the same period in the prior year. Changes in currency exchange rates resulted in reduced operating costs and expenses of approximately 3% in the current quarter. Total operating costs and expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014 also include charges for transaction and integration related expenses of \$3.1 and \$5.4, respectively, associated with the acquisition of Stream.

As a percentage of revenues, the cost of providing services and products sold was 63.5% in the third quarter of 2015, consistent with 63.5% in the prior year period. Selling, general and administrative expenses of \$175.9 in the third quarter of 2015 decreased \$1.6 from the prior year period as a result of lower spending in the current quarter due to synergies realized from the Stream integration, as well as favorable currency exchange impacts. These decreases were partially offset by increased stock compensation expense in the current quarter. As a percentage of revenues, selling, general, and administrative cost was 23.7%, which is consistent with 23.7% in the prior year. Depreciation expense of \$35.2 decreased \$3.6 from the prior year, while amortization expense of \$6.6 decreased \$0.7. The decrease in depreciation expense resulted from the timing of certain assets becoming fully depreciated.

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2015 versus Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014
Total operating costs and expenses of \$2,065.5 increased 4% from 2014 costs of \$1,990.7. The nine months ended September 30, 2014 exclude Stream operating costs of \$165.0 for the two months preceding the acquisition. Changes in currency exchange rates resulted in reduced operating costs and expenses of approximately 3% for the nine months ended September 30, 2015. Total operating costs and expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 included \$14.7 and \$20.8 charges for direct transaction costs and integration related expense, respectively, associated with the acquisition of Stream. These items are included within the Transaction and integration costs caption. As a percentage of revenues, the cost of providing services and products sold was 64.0% for the first nine months of 2015, compared to 63.5% in the prior year period, largely due to the timing of certain program implementations. Selling, general and administrative expenses of \$513.5 in the first nine months of 2015 increased 3% as compared to \$499.1 in the prior year period, primarily due to two additional months of expense related to Stream. As a percentage of revenues, selling, general and administrative expense was 23.4% compared to 23.9% in the prior year period. This decrease is primarily due to favorable currency exchange

impacts, as well as synergies realized from the Stream integration, partially offset by increased expense in the current year for certain information technology infrastructure initiatives and additional investment in data privacy and security. Depreciation expense of \$108.1 increased \$3.3 from the prior year period, while amortization expense of \$20.6 increased \$3.0. These increases primarily resulted from two additional months of expense in 2015 related to the acquired property and equipment and intangible assets from the Stream acquisition.

Operating Income and Adjusted Operating Income (a non-GAAP measure)

Table of Contents

In order to assess the underlying operational performance of the continuing operations of the business and to have a basis to compare underlying results to prior and future periods, we provide the non-GAAP measures, Adjusted Operating Income and Adjusted Operating Margin (Adjusted Operating Income divided by Total Revenues), in the table below. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, Adjusted Operating Income and Adjusted Operating Margin exclude the following:

Depreciation of \$4.7 and \$15.5 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, respectively, and \$5.7 and \$13.4, respectively, in the prior year periods, resulting from the fair value write-up of property and equipment acquired from Stream;

Amortization of acquired intangible assets of \$6.6 and \$20.6 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, respectively, and \$7.3 and \$17.6, respectively, in the prior year periods;

Transaction expenses of \$14.7 for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 associated with the acquisition of Stream. These expenses related to fees paid for third-party consulting services;

Integration expenses of \$3.1 and \$7.8 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, respectively,

• compared to \$5.4 and \$20.8 for the same periods in 2014, associated with the integration of the acquired Stream operations. These expenses primarily related to severance expense and fees for third-party consulting services:

A non-cash pension settlement charge of \$2.9 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014; and, A gain of \$1.6 for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 resulting from the settlement of a contingency related to a previous real estate sale.

Adjustments for these items are relevant in evaluating the overall performance of the business. Limitations associated with the use of these non-GAAP measures include that these measures do not present all of the amounts associated with our results as determined in accordance with GAAP. Management compensates for this limitation by using both the non-GAAP measures and the GAAP measures in its evaluation of performance. There are no material purposes for which we use these non-GAAP measures beyond those described above. These non-GAAP measures should be considered supplemental in nature and should not be construed as being more important than comparable GAAP measures.

	Three I	Mor	iths End	led				Nine M	ont	hs Ende	1			
	Septem	ıber	30,					Septem	ber	30,				
	2015		2014		Change		%	2015		2014		Change		%
Operating Income	\$47.8		\$42.0		\$5.8		14	\$133.3		\$100.9		\$32.4		32
Operating Margin	6.4	%	5.6	%				6.1	%	4.8	%			
Depreciation of property & equipment write-up	4.7		5.7		(1.0)	(18)	15.5		13.4		2.1		16
Amortization of acquired intangible assets	6.6		7.3		(0.7)	(10)	20.6		17.6		3.0		17
Transaction related expenses	_						NM			14.7		(14.7)	(100)
Integration related expenses	3.1		5.4		(2.3)	(43)	7.8		20.8		(13.0))	(63)
Net pension and other														
post-employment benefit plan	_		2.9		(2.9)	(100)			2.9		(2.9)	(100)
charges														
Gain on sale of real estate	_		_				NM	_		(1.6)	1.6		(100)
Adjusted Operating Income (a non-GAAP measure)	\$62.2		\$63.3		\$(1.1)	(2)	\$177.2		\$168.7		\$8.5		5
Adjusted Operating Margin	8.4	%	8.4	%				8.1	%	8.1	%			

Three Months Ended September 30, 2015 versus Three Months Ended September 30, 2014

Operating income was \$47.8 for the third quarter of 2015 compared to operating income of \$42.0 in the prior year period. Excluding the impacts of the items discussed above, adjusted operating income for the third quarter of 2015 was \$62.2 compared to \$63.3 in the same period in the prior year.

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2015 versus Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014 Operating income was \$133.3 for the first nine months of 2015 compared to operating income of \$100.9 in the prior year period. Excluding the impacts of the items discussed above, adjusted operating income for the nine months ended September 30, 2015 was \$177.2 compared to \$168.7 in the same period in the prior year. The increase from the prior year period is primarily due to

Table of Contents

the inclusion of two additional months of Stream results in the current year, in addition to synergies realized from the integration of Stream, partially offset by increased expense in 2015 for certain information technology infrastructure initiatives and additional investment in data privacy and security.

Non-Operating Items

	Three Mo	onths Ended			Nine Mo	nths Ended				
	Septembe	September 30,			Septembe	September 30,				
	2015	2014	Change	%	2015	2014	Change	%		
Operating Income	\$47.8	\$42.0	\$5.8	14	\$133.3	\$100.9	\$32.4	32		
Other (expense) income, net	(2.6) 0.3	(2.9) NM	0.3	(1.6)	1.9	NM		
Interest expense	(4.6) (5.9) 1.3	(22) (13.9)	(15.6)	1.7	(11)		
Income before Income Taxes	\$40.6	\$36.4	\$4.2	12	\$119.7	\$83.7	\$36.0	43		

Three Months Ended September 30, 2015 versus Three Months Ended September 30, 2014

Other expense was \$2.6 for the three months ended September 30, 2015, compared to other income of \$0.3 in the same period in the prior year. The increase in expense is primarily due to foreign currency exchange losses and losses related to the market value of assets for the EDCP in the current quarter. Interest expense decreased by \$1.3 compared to the same period in the prior year primarily due to a decrease in the Term Loan balance resulting from principal prepayments made during 2014 and 2015.

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2015 versus Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014

Other income was \$0.3 for the first nine months of 2015 compared to other expense of \$1.6 for the same period in the prior year. The change was primarily due to foreign currency exchange gains in the current period compared to foreign currency exchange losses in the prior year period. Interest expense decreased by \$1.7 compared to the same period in the prior year primarily due to a decrease in the Term Loan balance resulting from principal prepayments made during 2014 and 2015.

Income Taxes

	Three N	Months Ended			Nine Mo	onths Ended		
	Septem	ber 30,			Septemb	per 30,		
	2015	2014	Change	%	2015	2014	Change	%
Income before Income Taxes	\$40.6	\$36.4	\$4.2	12	\$119.7	\$83.7	\$36.0	43
Income tax (benefit) expense	(17.0) 6.4	(23.4) NM	(6.1) 15.2	(21.3) NM
Income from Continuing Operations, net of tax	\$57.6	\$30.0	\$27.6	92	\$125.8	\$68.5	\$57.3	84

Three Months Ended September 30, 2015 versus Three Months Ended September 30, 2014

The effective tax rate on net income from continuing operations was a benefit of 41.9% for the three months ended September 30, 2015 compared to expense of 17.6% in the same period last year. The change in tax rate for the three months ended September 30, 2015 is primarily due to a shift in the geographic mix of worldwide income and certain discrete items in the current quarter, including a \$17.5 benefit resulting from statute expirations from previous uncertain non-U.S. tax positions and a \$3.7 net tax benefit for a change in estimate between tax previously accrued for the repatriation of foreign earnings and the actual taxes paid on the ultimate repatriation of such earnings.

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2015 versus Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014

The effective tax rate on net income from continuing operations was a benefit of 5.1% for the nine months ended September 30, 2015 compared to expense of 18.2% in the same period last year. The change in tax rate for the nine months ended September 30, 2015 is primarily due to a shift in the geographic mix of worldwide income and certain discrete items in the current quarter, including a \$22.4 benefit resulting from favorable resolution of certain tax audits and statute expirations for previous uncertain non-U.S. tax positions and a \$3.7 net tax benefit for a change in estimate between tax previously accrued for the repatriation of foreign earnings and the actual taxes paid on the

ultimate repatriation of such earnings. The effective tax rate for the nine months

Table of Contents

ended September 30, 2014 was favorably impacted by discrete items, primarily driven by transaction costs incurred during 2014 that did not recur during 2015.

Net Income from Continuing Operations; Earnings per Diluted Share from Continuing Operations; Adjusted Net Income From Continuing Operations (non-GAAP measure); and Adjusted Earnings per Diluted Share from Continuing Operations (non-GAAP measure)

In order to assess the underlying operational performance of the continuing operations of the business, we provide non-GAAP measures in the tables below that exclude, in addition to the operating charges discussed above, the following:

Tax benefit of \$17.5 and \$22.4 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, resulting from statute expirations for previous uncertain non-U.S. tax positions and favorable resolutions of tax audits;

Tax benefit of \$3.7 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 and \$1.5 for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 for a change in estimate between tax previously accrued for the repatriation of foreign earnings and the actual taxes paid on the ultimate repatriation of such earnings; and,

Tax expense of \$0.4 for the nine months ended September 30, 2014, resulting from changes in the Company's state tax rate applicable to deferred tax assets and liabilities which resulted from the combination of the Convergys and Stream operations.

We use income from continuing operations, net of tax and earnings per share data excluding the operating charges discussed above and the discrete tax items discussed above for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, to assess the underlying operational performance of the continuing operations of the business for the year and to have a basis to compare underlying results to prior and future periods. Adjustments for these items are relevant in evaluating the overall performance of the business. Limitations associated with the use of these non-GAAP measures include that these measures do not include all of the amounts associated with our results as determined in accordance with GAAP. Management compensates for these limitations by using the non-GAAP measures, income from continuing operations, net of tax and diluted earnings per share excluding these items, and the GAAP measures, income from continuing operations, net of tax and diluted earnings per share, in its evaluation of performance. There are no material purposes for which we use these non-GAAP measures beyond those described above. These non-GAAP measures should be considered supplemental in nature and should not be construed as being more important than comparable GAAP measures.

	Three M	10	nths Endec	l			Nine Mon	ths Ended			
	Septemb	be	r 30,				Septembe	r 30,			
	2015		2014	Change	;	%	2015	2014	Change		%
Income from Continuing Operations, net of tax	\$57.6		\$30.0	\$27.6		92	\$125.8	\$68.5	\$57.3		84
Total operating charges from above, net of tax	10.0		14.7	(4.7)	(32)	30.7	47.6	(16.9)	(36)
Release of uncertain tax positions Adjustment for state tax rate changes	(17.5)	_	(17.5)	100 NM	(22.4)	0.4	(22.4 (0.4)	100 (100)
Tax benefit related to unremitted foreign earnings	(3.7)	_	(3.7)	100	(3.7)	(1.5)	(2.2)	NM
Adjusted Income from Continuing Operations, net of tax (a non-GAAP measure)	\$46.4		\$44.7	\$1.7		4	\$130.4	\$115.0	\$15.4		13
Diluted Earnings Per Common Share:											
Continuing operations	\$0.55		\$0.28	\$0.27		96	\$1.20	\$0.65	\$0.55		85
Impact of net charges above included in continuing operations, net of tax	(0.10)	0.14	(0.24)	NM	0.05	0.44	(0.39)	(89)

Adjusted diluted earnings per common

share from continuing operations (a \$0.45 \$0.42 \$0.03 7 \$1.25 \$1.09 \$0.16 15 non-GAAP measure)

Three Months Ended September 30, 2015 versus Three Months Ended September 30, 2014 Income from continuing operations, net of tax for the third quarter of 2015 was \$57.6 compared to \$30.0 for the same period in 2014, while income from continuing operations per diluted share for the third quarter in 2015 was \$0.55 compared to \$0.28 for

Table of Contents

the same period in 2014. Excluding the items discussed above, adjusted income from continuing operations, net of tax for the third quarter of 2015 was \$46.4, or \$0.45 per diluted share, compared to \$44.7, or \$0.42 per diluted share for the same period in 2014.

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2015 versus Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014 Income from continuing operations, net of tax for the first nine months of 2015 was \$125.8 compared to \$68.5 for the same period in 2014, while income from continuing operations per diluted share for the first nine months of 2015 was \$1.20 compared to \$0.65 for the same period in 2014. Excluding the items discussed above, adjusted income from continuing operations, net of tax for the first nine months of 2015 was \$130.4 or \$1.25 per diluted share, compared to \$115.0 or \$1.09 per diluted share for the same period in 2014.

Results of Discontinued Operations, Results of Discontinued Operations per Diluted Share, Net Income and Net Income per Diluted Share

	Three Mo Septembe	onths Ended or 30,	I		Nine Mor Septembe	nths Ended r 30,			
	2015	2014	Change	%	2015	2014	Change	%	
Income from Continuing Operations, net of tax Income from Discontinued Operations, net of tax benefit of	\$57.6	\$30.0	\$27.6	92	\$125.8	\$68.5	\$57.3	84	
\$0.7 and \$2.8, for the three months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and \$0.5 and \$2.7 for the nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014,	0.5	2.8	(2.3)	(82)	0.6	3.2	\$(2.6)	(81)
respectively. Net Income	\$58.1	\$32.8	\$25.3	77	\$126.4	\$71.7	\$54.7	76	
Diluted Earnings per Common Share:									
Continuing operations	\$0.55	\$0.28	\$0.27	96	\$1.20	\$0.65	\$0.55	85	
Discontinued operations	0.01	0.03	(0.02)	(67)	0.01	0.03	(0.02)	(67)
Net Diluted Earnings per Common Share	\$0.56	\$0.31	\$0.25	81	\$1.21	\$0.68	\$0.53	78	

Three Months Ended September 30, 2015 versus Three Months Ended September 30, 2014

Third quarter 2015 results from discontinued operations include a gain of \$0.5, net of tax, compared to a gain of \$2.8, net of tax in the third quarter of 2014. Activity in both periods related to the settlement or adjustment of certain contingencies and tax positions related to the sale of the Information Management business.

Including the results of discontinued operations, third quarter 2015 net income and diluted earnings per share were \$58.1 and \$0.56, respectively, compared with \$32.8 and \$0.31, respectively, in the third quarter of 2014.

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2015 versus Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014

For the first nine months of 2015 and 2014, results from discontinued operations included an additional gain of \$0.6, net of tax, and \$3.2, net of tax, respectively in each case, related to the settlement or adjustment of certain contingencies and tax positions related to the sale of the Information Management business.

Including the results of discontinued operations, net income and diluted earnings per share were \$126.4 and \$1.21, respectively, for the first nine months of 2015, compared with \$71.7 and \$0.68, respectively, for the same period in 2014.

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA (non-GAAP measures)

Management uses EBITDA, EBITDA margin (EBITDA divided by Total Revenues), Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA margin (Adjusted EBITDA divided by Total Revenues) and the GAAP measure, income from continuing operations, net of tax, to monitor

Table of Contents

and evaluate the underlying performance of the business and believes the presentation of these measures enhances investors' ability to analyze trends in the business and evaluate our underlying performance relative to other companies in the industry. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for income from continuing operations, net of tax, or other income statement data prepared in accordance with GAAP and our presentation of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to similarly-titled measures used by other companies. There are no material purposes for which we use these non-GAAP measures beyond the purposes described above. These non-GAAP measures should be considered supplemental in nature and should not be construed as being more important than comparable GAAP measures.

	Three Months	Ended	Nine Months I	Ended	
	September 30	,	September 30,		
	2015	2014	2015	2014	
Income from Continuing Operations, net of tax under U.S.	\$57.6	\$30.0	\$125.8	\$68.5	
GAAP	Ψ Ε / σ	Ψ20.0	Ψ1 201 0	Ψ 00 . 0	
Depreciation and Amortization	41.8	46.1	128.7	122.4	
Interest expense	4.6	5.9	13.9	15.6	
Income tax (benefit) expense	(17.0)	6.4	(6.1)	15.2	
EBITDA (a non-GAAP measure)	87.0	88.4	262.3	221.7	
Gain on sale of real estate	_	_	_	(1.6)	
Transaction related expenses	_	_	_	14.7	
Integration related expenses	3.1	5.4	7.8	20.8	
Net pension and other post employment benefit plan		2.9		2.9	
charges		2.9		2.9	
Adjusted EBITDA (a non-GAAP measure)	\$90.1	\$96.7	\$270.1	\$258.5	
EBITDA Margin	11.7 %	11.8 %	11.9 %	10.6 %	
Adjusted EBITDA Margin	12.1 %	12.9 %	12.3 %	12.4 %	

RESTRUCTURING CHARGES

2015 Restructuring

The Company recorded severance expense of \$0.1 and \$3.5, respectively, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, related to the Company's ongoing efforts to refine its operating model and reduce costs. The 2015 actions impacted approximately 200 employees. The severance expense is included in Restructuring charges on the Consolidated Statements of Income and is expected to be substantially paid in cash by June 30, 2016. The total remaining liability under these severance-related actions, which is included in Payables and other current liabilities on the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheet, was \$0.9 as of September 30, 2015, \$1.4 as of June 30, 2015 and \$1.0 as of March 31, 2015.

The Company also recorded restructuring expenses of \$0.1 and \$0.4, respectively, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, related to the integration of Stream. These amounts are included in Transaction and integration costs in the Consolidated Statements of Income and are expected to be substantially paid in cash by March 31, 2016. The total remaining liability under these severance-related actions, which is included in Payables and other current liabilities on the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheets, was \$0.1 as of September 30, 2015, \$0.3 as of June 30, 2015 and \$0.3 as of March 31, 2015.

2014 Restructuring

During 2014, the Company recorded severance charges of \$11.0 related to the elimination of certain redundant executive and non-executive positions as a result of the Company's integration of the Stream business. This severance activity impacted approximately 150 employees. These severance-related charges were fully paid in cash

by September 30, 2015, pursuant to the Company's severance policies. The total remaining liability was \$2.6 at December 31, 2014.

During 2014, the Company also recorded a severance charge of \$1.7 related to restructuring actions impacting approximately 400 employees. These actions were initiated to continue the Company's efforts to refine its operating model and reduce costs. The severance charges are included in Restructuring charges on the Consolidated Statement of Income and are expected to be substantially paid in cash by December 31, 2015. The total remaining liability under this severance-related restructuring plan, which is included in Payables and other current liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, was \$0.3 as of September 30, 2015, \$0.7 as of June 30, 2015, \$0.8 as of March 31, 2015 and \$1.3 as of December 31, 2014.

Savings from Restructuring Actions

Table of Contents

The 2015 and 2014 severance actions resulted in cost reductions of approximately \$2 and \$20, respectively, on an annualized basis. The impact of these benefits is spread across our operating expenses, primarily selling, general and administrative expense. The severance actions also resulted in cash savings of approximately \$2 and \$17, respectively, on an annualized basis. The impact on liquidity was not material for either action.

CLIENT CONCENTRATION

During the first nine months of 2015, our three largest clients accounted for 35.9% of our revenues, compared to 39.2% in the same period of 2014. Our largest client, AT&T (including DIRECTV in both years), accounted for 21.7% of revenues in the first nine months of 2015 as compared to 24.6% of revenue in the same period in the prior year. Revenues for all other clients were less than 10% of our consolidated revenues for the first nine months of 2015 and 2014. Volumes under certain of our long-term arrangements are earned under multiple contracts with individual clients and are subject to variation based on, among other things, general economic conditions, client outsourcing trends and seasonal patterns in our clients' businesses.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Convergys expectations for the remainder of the year include:

- •Reported fourth-quarter 2015 revenue of \$750 million to \$760 million, including approximately \$15 million negative impact of foreign exchange rates compared with 2014 rates;
- •Fourth-quarter 2015 adjusted EBITDA of \$98 million to \$102 million;
- •Fourth-quarter 2015 adjusted effective tax rate of approximately 23 percent;
- •Diluted shares outstanding to approximate 104 million;
- •Fourth-quarter adjusted Earnings per Diluted Common Share of \$0.45 to \$0.50.

Not included in this outlook are acquisition-related impacts such as integration costs, intangible amortization and depreciation related to the fair value write-up of acquired property and equipment, and tax expense associated with cash repatriation. Also not included are impacts from future currency movements, non-cash pension settlement charges, significant discrete tax adjustments or any future share repurchase activities.

FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Liquidity and Cash Flows

We believe that we have adequate liquidity from cash on hand and expected future operating cash flows to fund ongoing operations, invest in the business, make required debt payments and pay dividends at the discretion of the Board of Directors for the next twelve months.

Cash flows from operating activities generally provide us with a significant source of funding for our investing and financing activities. Cash flows from operating activities totaled \$182.7 in the first nine months of 2015 compared to \$207.4 in the same period last year. The nine months ended September 30, 2015, were negatively impacted by \$11.0 of payments for transaction and integration related expenses. The nine months ended September 30, 2014 were negatively impacted by \$27.4 of tax payments related to the repatriation of non-U.S. cash and \$34.1 of payments for transaction and integration related expenses. Excluding these items, cash flows provided by operating activities totaled \$193.7 and \$268.9 for the nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. This decrease primarily resulted from increased accounts receivable balances due to timing of cash collections during the current period, along with a \$20.0 contribution to the Company's Cash Balance Plan during 2015.

Cash flows used in investing activities were \$88.4 during the first nine months of 2015, resulting from capital expenditures during that period. Cash flows used in investing activities were \$827.6 during the first nine months of 2014, which included cash outflows of \$802.6 (net of cash acquired) for the purchase of Stream's operation, \$86.5 of capital expenditures and \$7.2 for the purchase of short-term investments, partially offset by \$68.7 in proceeds from the maturity of short-term investments.

Cash flows used in financing activities were \$117.4 during the first nine months of 2015 compared to \$268.0 of cash flows provided by financing activities during the first nine months of 2014. Activity in the current year included repayments of other long-term debt of \$56.0 and net proceeds from the Asset Securitization Facility of \$10.0. Additionally, we settled in cash the repurchase of 2.3 of the Company's common shares for \$52.5, including \$0.9 of shares repurchased but not settled prior to December 31, 2014 and excluding \$1.2 of shares repurchased in the first nine months of the year that had not settled as of September 30, 2015. We also paid \$21.8 in cash dividends and received \$0.5 of excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangements and \$2.4 from

Table of Contents

the exercise of stock options. During the first nine months of 2014, we had debt proceeds of \$344.9 from the issuance of other long-term debt related to the Term Loan under the new Credit Agreement entered into in connection with the acquisition of Stream and repayments of other long-term debt of \$104.1. Additionally, we had net proceeds from the Asset Securitization Facility of \$70.0, repurchased 1.2 of the Company's common shares for \$24.9, paid \$19.2 in cash dividends and paid \$2.0 of debt issuance costs during the nine months ended September 30, 2014. We also received \$1.9 of excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangements and \$1.4 from the exercise of stock options.

We use free cash flow and adjusted free cash flow, which are non-GAAP measures, to assess the financial performance of the Company. We define free cash flow as cash flows from operating activities less capital expenditures. A reconciliation of the GAAP measure, net cash provided by operating activities, to the non-GAAP measures, free cash flow and adjusted free cash flow, is as follows:

•	Three Mon September		Nine Month September	
	2015	2014	2015	2014
Net cash provided by operating activities under U.S. GAAP	\$49.9	\$115.7	\$182.7	\$207.4
Capital expenditures	(36.8	(30.2) (88.4	(86.5)
Free cash flow (a non-GAAP measure)	13.1	85.5	94.3	120.9
Stream acquisition - cash paid for transaction and integration related expenses (A)	4.1	4.7	11.0	34.1
Stream acquisition - cash received from escrow associated with the working capital settlement (A)	_	(15.0) —	
Cash paid for taxes related to repatriation of non-U.S. cash to partially fund the Stream acquisition (A)	_	_		27.4
Adjusted free cash flow (a non-GAAP measure)	\$17.2	\$75.2	\$105.3	\$182.4

(A) Because these payments were associated with investment activity, we have excluded these amounts from our adjusted free cash flow calculation.

Adjusted free cash flow was \$17.2 and \$105.3 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, respectively, compared to \$75.2 and \$182.4 for the same periods in 2014. The decrease of \$77.1 from the prior year in the nine-month period primarily resulted from increased accounts receivable balances due to timing of cash collections during the current period, along with a \$20.0 contribution to the Company's Cash Balance Plan during 2015. We believe that free cash flow and adjusted free cash flow are useful to investors because they present the operating cash flow of the Company, excluding the capital that is spent to continue and improve business operations, such as investment in the Company's existing businesses. Further, free cash flow and adjusted free cash flow provide an indication of the ongoing cash that is available for debt repayment, returning capital to shareholders and other opportunities. We also believe the presentation of these measures enhances investors' ability to analyze trends in the business and evaluate the Company's underlying performance relative to other companies in the industry. Limitations associated with the use of free cash flow and adjusted free cash flow include that they do not represent the residual cash flow available for discretionary expenditures as they do not incorporate certain cash payments, including payments made on capital lease obligations or cash payments for business acquisitions. Management compensates for these limitations by utilizing the non-GAAP measures, free cash flow and adjusted free cash flow, and the GAAP measure, cash flows from operating activities, in its evaluation of performance. There are no material purposes for which we use these non-GAAP measures beyond the purposes described above.

Capital Resources, Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Commitments

At September 30, 2015, total capitalization was \$1,647.9, consisting of \$331.7 of short-term and long-term debt, \$1,252.9 of equity and \$63.3 of temporary equity associated with the convertible debentures conversion feature. The total debt-to-capital ratio was 20.1% at September 30, 2015, compared to 22.5% at December 31, 2014. This decrease primarily resulted from a decrease in total debt outstanding under the Company's Term Loan.

On February 28, 2014, the Company entered into a Credit Agreement establishing an unsecured credit facility in the aggregate amount of \$650.0 (Credit Agreement). In connection with entering into the Credit Agreement, Convergys

terminated its \$300.0 Four-Year Competitive Advance and Revolving Credit Facility Agreement dated March 11, 2011. The Credit Agreement consists of unsecured term loans (the Term Loan) in the initial aggregate amount of \$350.0, and an unsecured revolving credit facility (the Revolving Credit Facility) in the amount of \$300.0. The Company recorded the initial carrying amount of the Term Loan at \$344.9, reflecting a discount of \$5.1 resulting from fees paid directly to the lenders at issuance. The discount will be amortized over the

Table of Contents

life of the Term Loan using the effective interest rate method (2.5% as of September 30, 2015), and is included in interest expense in the Consolidated Statements of Income. The Term Loan and the Revolving Credit Facility mature on March 3, 2019, unless extended pursuant to the terms of the Credit Agreement. Outstanding amounts bear interest at the applicable rate described in the Credit Agreement. During 2015 and 2014, The Company made voluntary Term Loan principal payments of \$50.0 and \$85.0, respectively. The next required principal payment is due March 3, 2019. While amounts borrowed and repaid under the Revolving Credit Facility may be re-borrowed, amounts repaid under the Term Loan may not be borrowed again under the Credit Agreement. Total borrowing capacity remaining under the Revolving Credit Facility was \$300.0, with \$215.0 outstanding principal on the Term Loan, as of September 30, 2015. The Credit Agreement contains certain affirmative and negative covenants, as well as other terms and conditions that are customary for credit facilities of this type, including financial covenants for leverage and interest coverage ratios. The Company was in compliance with all covenants at September 30, 2015.

During 2009, Convergys issued a total of \$125.0 aggregate principal amount of 5.75% Junior Subordinated Convertible Debentures due September 2029 (2029 Convertible Debentures) in exchange for \$122.5 of 4.875% Unsecured Senior Notes (4.875% Senior Notes) due December 15, 2009, pursuant to an exchange offer. The entire balance of the 2029 Convertible Debentures was outstanding and convertible at the option of the holders as of September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014.

During January 2014, the Company extended the terms of an asset securitization facility collateralized by accounts receivable of certain of the Company's subsidiaries, with a purchase limit of \$150.0 expiring in January 2017. During June 2015, the Company amended the asset securitization facility to include the receivables of certain of the Company's Stream subsidiaries. The asset securitization program is conducted through Convergys Funding Inc., a wholly-owned bankruptcy remote subsidiary of the Company. On March 13, 2015, the Company entered into an amendment to the asset securitization facility to adjust the maximum Debt-to-EBITDA ratio permitted under the terms of the facility. As of September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, Convergys had drawn \$50.0 and \$40.0, respectively, in available funding from qualified receivables. Amounts drawn under this facility have been classified as long-term debt within the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

We repurchased 0.9 and 2.3 of our common shares during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, at average prices of \$23.38 and \$22.68 per share for total repurchases of \$20.1 and \$52.8 under the standing share repurchase authorizations approved by the Company's Board of Directors. Based upon timing of the transactions, \$1.2 of shares repurchased had not settled as of September 30, 2015. These shares are excluded from outstanding shares at the end of the current quarter and were settled in cash during the fourth quarter of 2015. On August 4, 2015, the Company's Board of Directors approved an increase in the Company's share repurchase authorization to \$250.0 of common shares in the aggregate. At September 30, 2015, the Company had the authority to repurchase an additional \$234.4 pursuant to current authorizations. The timing and terms of any future purchases depend on a number of considerations including market conditions and our liquidity.

At September 30, 2015, we had outstanding letters of credit of \$23.5 and other bond obligations of \$2.7 related to performance and payment guarantees. We believe that any guarantee obligation that may arise will not be material. We also have purchase commitments with telecommunications providers of \$1.4 for the remainder of 2015. At September 30, 2015, we had outstanding performance bond obligations of \$30.0 related to performance and payment guarantees for the Company's former HR Management line of business. Subsequent to completion of the sale of the HR Management business, the Company continues to be responsible for these bond obligations. As part of the gain on disposition of the HR Management business we recognized a liability equal to the then present value of probability weighted cash flows of potential outcomes. Although the buyer is obligated to indemnify us for any and all losses, costs, liabilities and expenses incurred related to this performance bond, as of September 30, 2015 we maintain a liability of \$0.3 for this obligation. The Company's guarantee for this bond obligation expires in August 2016. We have unrecognized tax benefits of \$32.5. It is reasonably possible that these unrecognized tax benefits will decrease between approximately \$4 and \$27 in the next twelve months based upon the resolution of audits; however, actual developments in this area could differ from those currently expected.

During 2014 and 2015, the Company has paid the following Board-approved dividends per common share:

Table of Contents

Announcement Date	Record Date	Dividend Amount	Payment Date
November 6, 2013	December 27, 2013	\$0.06	January 10, 2014
February 5, 2014	March 21, 2014	\$0.06	April 4, 2014
May 12, 2014	June 19, 2014	\$0.07	July 3, 2014
August 11, 2014	September 19, 2014	\$0.07	October 3, 2014
November 5, 2014	December 26, 2014	\$0.07	January 9, 2015
February 18, 2015	March 20, 2015	\$0.07	April 3, 2015
May 5, 2015	June 18, 2015	\$0.08	July 2, 2015
August 4, 2015	September 18, 2015	\$0.08	October 2, 2015

On November 4, 2015, the Company announced that its Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of \$0.08 per common share to be paid on January 8, 2016 to shareholders of record as of December 24, 2015. The Board expects that future cash dividends will be paid on a quarterly basis. However, any decision to pay future cash dividends will be subject to Board approval, and will depend on the Company's future earnings, cash flow, financial condition, financial covenants and other relevant factors. We intend to continue to use cash dividends as a means of returning capital to shareholders, subject to our Board's determination that cash dividends are in the best interests of our shareholders.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to a variety of market risks, including the effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. Market risk is the potential loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices. Our risk management strategy includes the use of derivative instruments to reduce the effects on our operating results and cash flows from fluctuations caused by volatility in currency exchange and interest rates. In using derivative financial instruments to hedge exposures to changes in exchange rates and interest rates, we expose ourselves to counterparty credit risk. We manage exposure to counterparty credit risk by entering into derivative financial instruments with highly-rated institutions that can be expected to perform fully under the terms of the agreements and by diversifying the financial institutions with which we enter into such agreements.

Interest Rate Risk

As of September 30, 2015, Convergys had \$265 of variable rate debt outstanding under the Term Loan and Asset Securitization Facility, which exposes Convergys to changes in interest rates. Holding other variables constant, including the total amount of outstanding indebtedness, a one percent increase in interest rates on our variable-rate debt would cause an estimated increase in annual interest expense of approximately \$2.7.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

While most of our contracts are priced in U.S. dollars, approximately 20% of our revenue relates to contracts that are denominated in British pounds, euros, Australian dollars and Canadian dollars. A significant increase in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to these currencies may have a material impact on the value of those revenues when translated to U.S. dollars.

We serve many of our U.S.-based clients using contact center capacity in various countries such as the Philippines, India, Canada, China, Malaysia, Egypt, Costa Rica, Colombia, Dominican Republic, El Salvador, Nicaragua and Honduras. Although the contracts with these clients are typically priced in U.S. dollars, a substantial portion of the costs incurred to deliver services under these contracts are denominated in the local currency of the country where services are provided, which represents a foreign exchange exposure. As of September 30, 2015, we have hedged a portion of our exposure related to the anticipated cash flow requirements denominated in these foreign currencies by entering into forward contracts with several financial institutions to acquire a total of PHP 37,149.0 at a fixed price of \$825.9 at various dates through September 2018, INR 10,347.0 at a fixed price of \$150.4 at various dates through September 2018, CAD 41.8 at a fixed price of \$33.8 at various dates through April 2018 and COP 16,000.0 at a fixed price of \$5.2 at various dates through May 2016. The fair value of these derivative instruments as of September 30, 2015 is presented in Note 11 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. The potential loss in fair value at September 30, 2015 for such contracts resulting from a hypothetical 10% adverse change in the underlying foreign currency exchange rates is approximately \$101.5. This loss would be mitigated by corresponding gains on the

underlying exposures.

Other foreign currency exposures arise from transactions denominated in a currency other than the functional currency. We periodically enter into forward exchange contracts that are not designated as hedges. The purpose of these derivative instruments is to protect the Company against foreign currency exposure pertaining to receivables, payables and intercompany transactions

Table of Contents

that are denominated in currencies different from the functional currencies of the Company or the respective subsidiaries. As of September 30, 2015, the fair value of these derivatives not designated as hedges was a \$1.8 payable.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

See "ITEM 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014 for a discussion of our critical accounting policies and estimates.

There have been no material changes to our critical accounting policies and estimates in 2015.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, together with the Company's General Counsel, Chief Accounting Officer and other key employees, evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company's "disclosure controls and procedures" (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Act)) as of the end of the quarter ended September 30, 2015. Based on this evaluation, the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this report to provide reasonable assurance that the information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Act is accumulated and communicated to the Company's management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure, that such information is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission's rules and forms.

There were no changes in the Company's internal control over financial reporting during the period covered by this quarterly report that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal control over financial reporting.

Table of Contents

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The information required by Item 1 is included in Note 10 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-O and incorporated by reference herein.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

See "ITEM 1A. Risk Factors" in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014 for a discussion of our risk factors. There have been no material changes to our risk factors in 2015.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

There were no unregistered sales of equity securities during the third quarter of 2015 or from September 30, 2015 through the date of filing this report. We repurchased the following common shares during the nine months ended September 30, 2015, as summarized in the following table:

, ,	\mathcal{C}	Shares	Average price per
		Repurchased	share
January 2015		311,479	\$19.80
February 2015		250,556	21.11
March 2015		293,242	22.30
April 2015		249,903	23.02
May 2015		205,622	24.10
June 2015		155,064	25.35
July 2015		168,634	25.36
August 2015		331,415	22.92
September 2015		361,047	22.87
Total		2,326,962	\$22.68

All share repurchases were made pursuant to publicly announced programs. At June 30, 2015, the Company remained authorized to repurchase up to \$54.4 of outstanding shares from the Board of Director's \$250.0 share repurchase authorization in February 2013. On August 4, 2015, the Company's Board of Directors approved an increase in the Company's share repurchase authorization to \$250.0 of common shares in the aggregate. At September 30, 2015, the Company remained authorized to repurchase up to an additional \$234.4 of outstanding shares. The timing and terms of any future purchases depend on a number of considerations, including market conditions, our available liquidity and our capital needs.

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

(a) Exhibits.

The following are filed as Exhibits to Part II of this Form 10-Q:

Table of Contents

Exhibit Number	
2.1	Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated January 6, 2014. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2.1 to Form 8-K filed on January 7, 2014.)
3.1	Amended Articles of Incorporation of the Company. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.1 to Form 10-Q filed on May 5, 2010.)
3.2	Amended and Restated Code of Regulations of the Company. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.1 to Form 8-K filed on May 2, 2011.)
4.1	Amendment to Convergys Corporation Retirement and Savings Plan (PPA Restatement) dated July 31, 2015.
10.1	Form of Performance Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed on January 28, 2015.)
10.2	Form of Time-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K filed on January 28, 2015.)
10.3	Amendment No. 7 to Receivables Purchase Agreement dated as of March 13, 2015. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K on March 16, 2015.)
10.4	Amendment No. 8 to Receivables Purchase Agreement dated as of June 9, 2015. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.4 to Form 8-K on June 12, 2015.)
21	Subsidiaries of the Company.
31.1	Rule 13a-14(a) Certification by Chief Executive Officer.
31.2	Rule 13a-14(a) Certification by Chief Financial Officer.
32.1	Certification by Chief Executive Officer of Periodic Financial Reports Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.2	Certification by Chief Financial Officer of Periodic Financial Reports Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
101 ITEMS 3	The following financial statements from the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2015, filed on November 4, 2015, formatted in XBRL: (i) Consolidated Statements of Income, (ii) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income, (iii) Consolidated Balance Sheets, (iv) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, (v) the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

Table of Contents

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Convergys Corporation

Date: November 4, 2015 /s/ Andre S. Valentine Andre S. Valentine

Chief Financial Officer